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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements

FARO TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

 

(in thousands, except share data)   

June 30,
2012

(Unaudited)  
December 31,

2011  
ASSETS    
Current Assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 74,748   $ 64,540  
Short-term investments    64,989    64,997  
Accounts receivable, net    53,246    57,512  
Inventories, net    54,057    49,934  
Deferred income taxes, net    6,190    5,297  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    10,617    9,207  

    
 

   
 

Total current assets    263,847    251,487  
    

 
   

 

Property and Equipment:    
Machinery and equipment    30,587    29,171  
Furniture and fixtures    6,197    5,963  
Leasehold improvements    10,728    10,233  

    
 

   
 

Property and equipment at cost    47,512    45,367  
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization    (31,373)   (29,134) 

    
 

   
 

Property and equipment, net    16,139    16,233  
    

 
   

 

Goodwill    18,339    18,610  
Intangible assets, net    6,670    6,849  
Service inventory    18,160    17,316  
Deferred income taxes, net    2,240    2,296  

    
 

   
 

Total Assets   $325,395   $ 312,791  
    

 

   

 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY    
Current Liabilities:    

Accounts payable   $ 9,295   $ 13,396  
Accrued liabilities    15,674    18,076  
Income taxes payable    2,448    2,682  
Current portion of unearned service revenues    16,751    15,638  
Customer deposits    4,339    4,072  
Current portion of obligations under capital leases    38    84  

    
 

   
 

Total current liabilities    48,545    53,948  
Unearned service revenues - less current portion    9,232    9,540  
Deferred tax liability, net    1,279    1,148  
Obligations under capital leases - less current portion    65    257  

    
 

   
 

Total Liabilities    59,121    64,893  
    

 
   

 

Commitments and contingencies - See Note Q    

Shareholders’ Equity:    
Common stock - par value $.001, 50,000,000 shares authorized; 17,626,558 and 17,381,110 issued; 16,946,323 and

16,700,875 outstanding, respectively    18    17  
Additional paid-in capital    178,361    169,780  
Retained earnings    92,844    81,360  
Accumulated other comprehensive income    4,126    5,816  
Common stock in treasury, at cost - 680,235 shares    (9,075)   (9,075) 

    
 

   
 

Total Shareholders’ Equity    266,274    247,898  
    

 
   

 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity   $325,395   $ 312,791  
    

 

   

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FARO TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(UNAUDITED)
 
   Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended  
(in thousands, except share and per share data)   June 30, 2012   July 2, 2011   June 30, 2012   July 2, 2011  
SALES      

Product   $ 55,432   $ 49,692   $ 109,856   $ 92,650  
Service    11,330    10,019    22,135    19,627  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total Sales    66,762    59,711    131,991    112,277  
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

COST OF SALES      
Product    22,320    19,349    42,826    34,922  
Service    7,382    6,846    14,919    13,567  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total Cost of Sales (exclusive of depreciation and amortization, shown
separately below)    29,702    26,195    57,745    48,489  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

GROSS PROFIT    37,060    33,516    74,246    63,788  

OPERATING EXPENSES:      
Selling    15,841    15,309    31,879    29,461  
General and administrative    8,134    6,917    14,762    13,507  
Depreciation and amortization    1,689    1,722    3,368    3,336  
Research and development    4,525    3,814    8,933    7,446  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total operating expenses    30,189    27,762    58,942    53,750  
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS    6,871    5,754    15,304    10,038  
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

OTHER (INCOME) EXPENSE      
Interest income    (20)   (39)   (121)   (65) 
Other (income) expense, net    401    124    261    (5) 
Interest expense    7    2    20    31  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE    6,483    5,667    15,144    10,077  

INCOME TAX EXPENSE    1,749    1,434    3,660    2,601  
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

NET INCOME   $ 4,734   $ 4,233   $ 11,484   $ 7,476  
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

NET INCOME PER SHARE - BASIC   $ 0.28   $ 0.26   $ 0.68   $ 0.46  
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

NET INCOME PER SHARE - DILUTED   $ 0.28   $ 0.25   $ 0.67   $ 0.45  
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Weighted average shares - Basic    16,921,012    16,448,229    16,861,221    16,349,190  
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Weighted average shares - Diluted    17,140,115    16,845,877    17,157,185    16,724,019  
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FARO TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(UNAUDITED)
 
   Three Months Ended    Six Months Ended  
(in thousands)   June 30, 2012  July 2, 2011   June 30, 2012  July 2, 2011 

Net income   $ 4,734   $ 4,233    $ 11,484   $ 7,476  
Currency translation adjustments    (3,022)   2,771     (1,688)   5,342  

    
 

   
 

    
 

   
 

Comprehensive income   $ 1,712   $ 7,004    $ 9,796   $ 12,818  
    

 
   

 
    

 
   

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FARO TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(UNAUDITED)
 
   Six Months Ended  
(in thousands)   June 30, 2012  July 2, 2011 
CASH FLOWS FROM:    
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:    

Net income   $ 11,484   $ 7,476  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:    

Depreciation and amortization    3,368    3,336  
Compensation for stock options and restricted stock units    1,866    1,366  
Provision for (net recovery of) bad debts    (84)   1,082  
Deferred income tax benefit    (744)   (16) 

Change in operating assets and liabilities:    
Decrease (increase) in:    

Accounts receivable    3,535    5,920  
Inventories, net    (6,173)   (14,773) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    (1,569)   (2,032) 
Income tax benefit from exercise of stock options    (1,114)   (1,013) 

Increase (decrease) in:    
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities    (6,313)   44  
Income taxes payable    933    197  
Customer deposits    317    (1,723) 
Unearned service revenues    1,191    2,200  

    
 

   
 

Net cash provided by operating activities    6,697    2,064  
    

 
   

 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:    
Purchases of property and equipment    (2,533)   (2,534) 
Payments for intangible assets    (443)   (425) 

    
 

   
 

Net cash used in investing activities    (2,976)   (2,959) 
    

 
   

 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:    
Payments on capital leases    (98)   (117) 
Income tax benefit from exercise of stock options    1,114    1,013  
Proceeds from issuance of stock, net    5,601    6,875  

    
 

   
 

Net cash provided by financing activities    6,617    7,771  
    

 
   

 

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    (130)   (259) 
    

 
   

 

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    10,208    6,617  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD    64,540    50,722  
    

 
   

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD   $ 74,748   $ 57,339  
    

 
   

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FARO TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unaudited for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011

(in thousands, except share and per share data, or as otherwise noted)

NOTE A – DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

FARO Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries (collectively the “Company” or “FARO”) design, develop, manufacture, market and support software-based
three-dimensional measurement devices for manufacturing, industrial, building construction and forensic applications. The Company’s principal products include
the FaroArm, FARO Laser Scan Arm and FARO Gage, all articulated electromechanical measuring devices, and the FARO Laser Tracker ION, FARO Focus 3D
and FARO 3D Imager AMP, all laser-based measuring devices. Primary markets for the Company’s products include automobile, aerospace, heavy equipment,
light manufacturing and machine shops. The Company sells the vast majority of its products through a direct sales force located in many of the world’s largest
industrialized countries.

NOTE B – PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of FARO Technologies, Inc. and all of the Company’s subsidiaries. All
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. The financial statements of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars
using exchange rates in effect at period-end for assets and liabilities and average exchange rates during each reporting period for results of operations.
Adjustments resulting from financial statement translations are reflected as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income.

NOTE C – BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company include all normal recurring accruals and adjustments considered necessary by management for their
fair presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). Preparing financial statements
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ materially from
those estimates. The consolidated results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012 are not necessarily indicative of results that may be
expected for the year ending December 31, 2012 or any future period.

The information included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including the interim consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes,
should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and related notes included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.

NOTE D – RECLASSIFICATIONS

From time to time the Company may reclassify certain prior period amounts to conform to the current period presentation.
 

7



Table of Contents

NOTE E – IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2011-05, Comprehensive Income
(Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive Income (“ASU 2011-05”). ASU 2011-05 will require companies to present the components of net income and other
comprehensive income either as one continuous statement or as two consecutive statements. It eliminates the option to present components of other
comprehensive income as part of the changes in stockholders’ equity. The standard does not change the items which must be reported in other comprehensive
income, how such items are measured or when they must be reclassified to net income. ASU 2011-05 is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2011. The adoption of ASU 2011-05 during the quarter ended March 31, 2012 only impacted presentation and did not have any effect on the
Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements or on its financial condition.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-12: Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the
Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05 (“ASU 2011-12”).
ASU 2011-12 defers the specific requirement to present items that are reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income to net income separately with
their respective components of net income and other comprehensive income. As part of this update, the FASB did not defer the requirement to report
comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement or in two separate but consecutive financial statements. The specific requirements deferred under
ASU 2011-12 are not expected to have any impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

NOTE F – SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Share-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized over the service period, which is
typically the same as the vesting period. The vesting period for the share-based compensation awarded by the Company is generally three years. The Company
uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock option grants. The Company uses the closing market price of its common stock
on the date of grant to determine the fair value of restricted stock and restricted stock units.

The Company used the following assumptions for the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to determine the fair value of options granted during the six
months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011:
 

   For the Six Months Ended
   June 30, 2012  July 2, 2011
Risk-free interest rate   0.61% - 0.66% 1.12% - 1.83%
Expected dividend yield   0%  0%
Expected option life   4 years  4 years
Expected volatility   50.4% - 50.7% 47.9% - 48.7%
Weighted-average expected volatility   50.7%  48.7%

Historical information was the primary basis for the selection of the expected dividend yield, expected volatility and the expected lives of the options. The
risk-free interest rate was based on yields of U.S. zero coupon issues and U.S. Treasury issues, with a term equal to the expected life of the option being valued.
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The Company recorded total share-based compensation expense of $1,093 and $723 for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011,
respectively, and $1,929 and $1,394 for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011, respectively.

A summary of stock option activity and weighted average exercise prices for the six months ended June 30, 2012 follows:
 

   Options   

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price   

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual Term   

Aggregate Intrinsic
Value as of

June 30, 2012  
Outstanding at January 1, 2012    865,445   $ 26.72      

Granted    240,866    57.00      
Forfeited    (17,557)   30.01      
Exercised    (231,109)   24.23      

    
 

   
 

    
 

    
 

Outstanding at June 30, 2012    857,645   $ 35.84     5.0    $ 8,944  
    

 
   

 
    

 
    

 

Options exercisable at June 30, 2012    389,619   $ 24.54     3.7    $ 6,834  
    

 
   

 
    

 
    

 

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of the stock options granted during the six months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011 was $22.57 and $14.17
per option, respectively. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the three months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011 was $0.4 million and
$5.2 million, respectively. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the six months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011 was $6.5 million and
$7.0 million, respectively. The fair value of stock options vested during the three months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011 was $0.0 million and $0.0 million,
respectively. The total fair value of stock options vested during the six months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011 was $1.7 million and $1.6 million,
respectively.

The following table summarizes the restricted stock and restricted stock unit activity and weighted average grant-date fair values for the six months ended
June 30, 2012:
 

   Shares   

Weighted-
Average

Grant  Date
Fair Value  

Non-vested at January 1, 2012    43,527   $ 32.31  
Granted    12,719    49.98  
Forfeited    (1,619)   27.39  
Vested    (17,160)   35.45  

    
 

   
 

Non-vested at June 30, 2012    37,467   $ 40.85  
    

 

   

 

As of June 30, 2012, there was $8.5 million of total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to non-vested stock-based compensation
arrangements. The expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.2 years.
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NOTE G – SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Selected cash payments and non-cash activity were as follows:
 

   Six Months Ended  

   
June 30,

2012    
July 2,
2011  

Cash paid for interest   $ 20    $ 30  

Cash paid for income taxes   $2,767    $2,095  

NOTE H – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company considers cash on hand and all short-term, highly liquid investments that have maturities of three months or less at the time of
purchase to be cash and cash equivalents.

NOTE I – SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Short-term investments at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 include U.S. Treasury Bills totaling $65.0 million that mature through
December 13, 2012. The weighted average interest rate on the U.S. Treasury bills is less than one percent. The investments are classified as held-to-maturity and
recorded at cost. The fair value of the U.S. Treasury Bills at June 30, 2012 approximated cost.

NOTE J – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consist of the following:
 

   
As of

June 30, 2012  
As of

December 31, 2011 
Accounts receivable   $ 57,579   $ 62,097  
Allowance for doubtful accounts    (4,333)   (4,585) 

    
 

   
 

Total   $ 53,246   $ 57,512  
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NOTE K – INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following:
 

   
As of

June 30, 2012  
As of

December 31, 2011 
Raw materials   $ 32,152   $ 28,675  
Finished goods    8,472    7,251  
Sales demonstration inventory    16,504    16,794  
Reserve for excess and obsolete    (3,071)   (2,786) 

    
 

   
 

Inventory   $ 54,057   $ 49,934  
    

 

   

 

Service inventory   $ 18,160   $ 17,316  
    

 

   

 

NOTE L – EARNINGS PER SHARE

A reconciliation of the number of common shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) is presented below:
 
   Three Months Ended   Six Months Ended  
   June 30, 2012    July 2, 2011   June 30, 2012   July 2, 2011  

   Shares    
Per-Share
Amount    Shares    

Per-Share
Amount   Shares    

Per-Share
Amount   Shares    

Per-Share
Amount  

Basic EPS    16,921,012    $ 0.28     16,448,229    $ 0.26    16,861,221    $ 0.68    16,349,190    $ 0.46  

Effect of dilutive securities    219,103     —       397,648     (0.01)   295,964     (0.01)   374,829     (0.01) 
    

 
    

 
    

 
    

 
   

 
    

 
   

 
    

 

Diluted EPS    17,140,115    $ 0.28     16,845,877    $ 0.25    17,157,185    $ 0.67    16,724,019    $ 0.45  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

   

 

    

 

   

 

    

 

The effect of 240,616 and 240,116 securities were not included for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2012, as they were antidilutive.
There were no antidilutive securities for the three months and six months ended July 2, 2011, as a result of outstanding stock options being in-the-money.
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NOTE M – ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:
 

   

As of
June 30,

2012    

As of
December 31,

2011  
Accrued compensation and benefits   $ 7,888    $ 10,665  
Accrued warranties    2,445     2,365  
Professional and legal fees    1,478     966  
Other accrued liabilities    3,863     4,080  

    
 

    
 

  $15,674    $ 18,076  
    

 

    

 

Activity related to accrued warranties was as follows:
 

   Six Months Ended  
   June 30, 2012  July 2, 2011 
Beginning Balance   $ 2,365   $ 1,857  
Provision for warranty expense    1,457    1,170  
Warranty expired    (1,377)   (811) 

    
 

   
 

Ending Balance   $ 2,445   $ 2,216  
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NOTE N – INCOME TAXES

Total deferred income tax assets for the Company’s foreign subsidiaries relating to net operating loss carryforwards were $15.0 million and $14.9
million at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. The related valuation allowance was $11.9 million and $11.8 million at June 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, respectively. The Company’s effective tax rate decreased to 24.2% for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from 25.8% for the six months
ended July 2, 2011 and included a reduction in the income tax rates of 2.8% and 4.2%, respectively, related to the tax benefit of the exercise of employee stock
options. The Company’s tax rate continues to be lower than the statutory tax rate in the United States primarily as a result of favorable tax rates in foreign
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining the Company’s worldwide provision for income taxes. In the ordinary course of a global business,
there are many transactions for which the ultimate tax outcome is uncertain. The Company reviews its tax contingencies on a regular basis and makes appropriate
accruals as necessary.

The effective income tax rate for 2012 and 2011 includes a reduction in the statutory corporate tax rates for the Company’s operations in
Switzerland. The favorable tax rate ruling requires the Company to maintain a certain level of manufacturing operations in Switzerland. The aggregate dollar
effect of this favorable tax rate was approximately $0.5 million, or $0.03 per share, in the six month period ended June 30, 2012, and $0.0 million, or $0.0 per
share, in the six month period ended July 2, 2011.

In 2005, the Company opened a regional headquarters and began to manufacture its products in Singapore. In the third quarter of 2006, the Company
received confirmation of a tax holiday for its operations from the Singapore Economic Development Board for a period of four years commencing January 1,
2006 and an additional six year extension at favorable tax rates subject to certain terms and conditions including employment, spending, and capital investment.
The aggregate dollar effect of this favorable tax rate was approximately $0.2 million, or $0.01 per share, during the six month period ended June 30, 2012, and
$0.2 million, or $0.01 per share, in the six month period ended July 2, 2011.

NOTE O – FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, accounts receivable, customer deposits and
accounts payable and accruals. The carrying amounts of such financial instruments approximate their fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments.
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NOTE P – SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company has three reportable segments based upon geographic regions: Americas, Europe/Africa and Asia Pacific. The Company does not
allocate corporate expenses to Europe/Africa or Asia Pacific regions. These corporate expenses are included in the Americas region. The Company does not incur
Research and Development expenses in its Asia Pacific region.

The Company develops, manufactures, markets, supports and sells Computer-Aided Design (“CAD”)-based quality assurance products integrated
with CAD-based inspection and statistical process control software in each of these regions. These activities represent approximately 99% of consolidated sales.
The Company evaluates performance and allocates resources based upon profitable growth and assets deployed.

The following table presents information about the Company’s reportable segments:
 

   Three Months Ended    Six Months Ended  
   June 30, 2012  July 2, 2011   June 30, 2012   July 2, 2011 
Americas Region        
Net sales to external customers   $ 25,714   $ 21,911    $ 50,773    $ 41,238  
Operating (loss) income    (489)   137     49     604  
Long-lived assets    22,379    22,723     22,379     22,723  
Capital expenditures    332    849     894     1,734  
Total assets    171,081    148,395     171,081     148,395  

Europe/Africa Region        
Net sales to external customers   $ 23,200   $ 23,932    $ 46,246    $ 42,954  
Operating income    1,613    1,215     3,917     907  
Long-lived assets    16,146    18,820     16,146     18,820  
Capital expenditures    580    739     762     1,009  
Total assets    94,777    93,660     94,777     93,660  

Asia Pacific Region        
Net sales to external customers   $ 17,848   $ 13,868    $ 34,972    $ 28,085  
Operating income    5,747    4,402     11,338     8,527  
Long-lived assets    2,623    2,038     2,623     2,038  
Capital expenditures    791    116     1,045     403  
Total assets    59,537    47,577     59,537     47,577  

Totals        
Net sales to external customers   $ 66,762   $ 59,711    $ 131,991    $ 112,277  
Operating income    6,871    5,754     15,304     10,038  
Long-lived assets    41,148    43,581     41,148     43,581  
Capital expenditures    1,703    1,704     2,701     3,146  
Total assets    325,395    289,632     325,395     289,632  

The geographical sales information presented above represents sales to customers located in each respective region, whereas the long-lived assets
information represents assets held in the respective regions. There were no customers that individually accounted for 10% or more of total revenue in each of the
periods presented above.
 

14



Table of Contents

NOTE Q – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases—The Company is a party to leases arising in the normal course of business that expire on or before 2019. Total obligations under these leases
are approximately $6.3 million for 2012.

Purchase Commitments—The Company enters into purchase commitments for products and services in the ordinary course of business. These
purchases generally cover production requirements for 60 to 90 days. As of June 30, 2012, the Company does not have any long-term commitments for these
purchases.

Patent Matters—On July 11, 2008, Metris USA, Inc. and its affiliates, Metris N.V., Metris IPR N.V. and 3-D Scanners Ltd., filed a complaint against
the Company for patent infringement in the U.S. District Court for the District of Massachusetts (the “Massachusetts Court”) concerning U.S. Patent Nos.
6,611,617 and 7,313,264 (hereinafter, the “patents-in-suit”). Following an acquisition by Nikon Corporation in late 2009, Metris USA, Inc. subsequently changed
its name to Nikon Metrology, Inc., Metris N.V. changed its name to Nikon Metrology NV, and Metris IPR N.V. was dissolved and merged into Nikon Metrology
NV. We refer to each of Nikon Metrology, Inc., Nikon Metrology NV, and 3-D Scanners Ltd. as “Plaintiffs” or “Nikon”.

The Company responded to the complaint with counterclaims alleging that the patents-in-suit, which are generally directed to laser scanning devices,
are invalid, non-infringed, and unenforceable due to fraud during prosecution of the patents in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. On August 31, 2009, the
Massachusetts Court granted the Company’s motion to add counterclaims and defenses for violation of federal and state antitrust and unfair competition laws
based on the alleged knowing assertion of invalid and fraudulent patents. The Company also filed an amended counterclaim to add the Plaintiff’s parent company,
Nikon Corporation, as a counterclaim defendant.

On January 29, 2010, the Company filed a motion for summary judgment that the patents-in-suit are unenforceable due to inequitable conduct during
patent prosecution. On July 14, 2010, the Company filed a motion for summary judgment of non-infringement of both patents-in-suit. In addition, during the first
quarter of 2010, Nikon served a supplemental interrogatory answer revising its alleged date of conception of the patents-in-suit to an earlier date. The Company
filed a motion to strike the supplemental interrogatory answer. On August 31, 2010, Nikon filed a motion for summary judgment against the Company’s
counterclaims for antitrust violations and unfair trade practices. The Company filed its opposition on October 12, 2010.

A mediation hearing held on February 18, 2011 to settle the matter was unsuccessful. On February 22, 2011, the Massachusetts Court denied Nikon’s
motion for summary judgment on the Company’s counterclaims for antitrust violations and unfair trade practices without prejudice. On February 24, 2011, the
Massachusetts Court denied the Company’s motion for summary judgment of non-infringement without prejudice. On May 4, 2011, the Massachusetts Court
found that, with respect to U.S. Patent No. 6,611,617, Nikon’s patent is unenforceable due to inequitable conduct.

On May 26, 2011, the Company renewed its motion for summary judgment of non-infringement. On June 28, 2011, the Massachusetts Court heard
oral arguments on the Company’s motion, as well as on Nikon’s renewed motion for summary judgment on the Company’s counterclaims for anti-trust violations
and unfair trade practices. The Massachusetts Court also heard oral arguments regarding an intervening change in the law of inequitable conduct and whether it
changes the Massachusetts Court’s May 4, 2011 finding that Nikon’s U.S. Patent No. 6,611,617 is unenforceable due to inequitable conduct.

On September 19, 2011, as a result of these changes in the law of inequitable conduct, the Massachusetts Court vacated its May 4, 2011 decision that
U.S. Patent No. 6,611,617 is unenforceable. However, in the same order, the Massachusetts Court ruled that the Company did not infringe U.S. Patent
No. 6,611,617. The Massachusetts Court also granted Nikon’s motion for summary judgment on the Company’s
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counterclaims for anti-trust violations and unfair trade practices. The Massachusetts Court denied the Company’s motion for summary judgment of non-
infringement of U.S. Patent No. 7,313,264. The effect of the ruling is to reduce or eliminate the Company’s exposure with respect to claims associated with U.S.
Patent No. 6,611,617, while the patent dispute with respect to U.S. Patent No. 7,313,264 remains ongoing. A pre-trial conference was held on June 6, 2012 and a
jury trial on the remaining claims is scheduled to begin on July 30, 2012. The Company believes it does not infringe U.S. Patent No. 7,313,264 and that the patent
is invalid and unenforceable, and the Company will continue to vigorously defend itself against these claims.

While it is not possible to predict the outcome of this lawsuit, we believe an adverse determination could have a material impact on the Company’s
business, financial condition or results of operations.

Other than the litigation mentioned above, the Company is not involved in any legal proceedings other than routine litigation arising in the normal
course of business, none of which the Company believes will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of
operations.

NOTE R – LINES OF CREDIT

On July 11, 2006, the Company entered into a loan agreement providing for an available line of credit of $30.0 million, which was most recently amended
effective March 15, 2012. Loans under the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, as amended, bear interest at the rate of LIBOR plus a fixed percentage
between 1.50% and 2.00% and require the Company to maintain a minimum cash balance and tangible net worth measured at the end of the Company’s fiscal
quarters. As of June 30, 2012, the Company was in compliance with all of the covenants under the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, as amended. The
term of the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, as amended, extends to March 31, 2015. The Company has not drawn on this line of credit.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following information should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the notes thereto, included elsewhere in
this Form 10-Q, and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.

FARO Technologies, Inc. (“FARO”, the “Company”, “us”, “we”, or “our”) has made “forward-looking statements” in this report (within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995). Statements that are not historical facts or that describe our plans, beliefs, goals, intentions, objectives,
projections, expectations, assumptions, strategies, or future events are forward-looking statements. In addition, words such as “may,” “will,” “believe,” “plan,”
“should,” “could,” “seek,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “estimate,” “project” and similar words, or discussions of our strategy or other intentions identify
forward-looking statements. Specifically, this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains, among others, forward-looking statements regarding:
 

•  the Company’s ability to achieve and maintain profitability;
 

•  the impact of fluctuations in exchange rates;
 

•  the effect of estimates and assumptions with respect to critical accounting policies and the impact of the adoption of recently issued accounting
pronouncements;

 

•  the impact of changes in technologies on the competitiveness of the Company’s products or their components;
 

•  the magnitude of increased warranty costs from new product introductions and enhancements to existing products;
 

•  the sufficiency of the Company’s plants to meet its manufacturing requirements;
 

•  the outcome of litigation and its effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations;
 

•  the continuation of the Company’s share repurchase program;
 

•  the sufficiency of the Company’s working capital, cash flow from operations, and credit facility to fund its long-term liquidity requirements;
 

•  the impact of geographic changes in the manufacturing or sales of the Company’s products on its tax rate; and
 

•  the imposition of penalties against the Company for failure to comply with its continuing obligations with respect to the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act
(“FCPA”) Matter.

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to a number of known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other
factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Consequently, undue reliance
should not be placed on these forward-looking statements. The Company does not intend to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events, or otherwise, unless otherwise required by law. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
contemplated in such forward-looking statements include, among others, the following:
 

•  economic downturn in the manufacturing industry or the domestic and international economies in the regions of the world where the Company operates;
 

•  the Company’s inability to further penetrate its customer base and target markets;
 

•  development by others of new or improved products, processes or technologies that make the Company’s products obsolete or less competitive;
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•  the Company’s inability to maintain its technological advantage by developing new products and enhancing its existing products;
 

•  the Company’s inability to successfully identify and acquire target companies or achieve expected benefits from acquisitions that are consummated;
 

•  the cyclical nature of the industries of the Company’s customers and material adverse changes in its customers’ access to liquidity and capital;
 

•  the market potential for the computer-aided measurement (“CAM2”) market and the potential adoption rate for the Company’s products are difficult to
quantify and predict;

 

•  the inability to protect the Company’s patents and other proprietary rights in the United States and foreign countries;
 

•  fluctuations in the Company’s annual and quarterly operating results and the inability to achieve its financial operating targets as a result of a number of
factors, including, without limitation (i) litigation and regulatory action brought against the Company, (ii) quality issues with its products, (iii) excess or
obsolete inventory, (iv) raw material price fluctuations, (v) expansion of the Company’s manufacturing capability and other inflationary pressures, (vi) the
size and timing of customer orders, (vii) the amount of time that it takes to fulfill orders and ship the Company’s products, (viii) the length of the
Company’s sales cycle to new customers and the time and expense incurred in further penetrating its existing customer base, (ix) increases in operating
expenses required for product development and new product marketing, (x) costs associated with new product introductions, such as product development,
marketing, assembly line start-up costs and low introductory period production volumes, (xi) the timing and market acceptance of new products and
product enhancements, (xii) customer order deferrals in anticipation of new products and product enhancements, (xiii) the Company’s success in expanding
its sales and marketing programs, (xiv) start-up costs associated with opening new sales offices outside of the United States, (xv) fluctuations in revenue
without proportionate adjustments in fixed costs, (xvi) the efficiencies achieved in managing inventories and fixed assets, (xvii) investments in potential
acquisitions or strategic sales, product or other initiatives, (xviii) shrinkage or other inventory losses due to product obsolescence, scrap or material price
changes, (xix) adverse changes in the manufacturing industry and general economic conditions, (xx) compliance with government regulations including
health, safety, and environmental matters, (xxi) the ultimate costs of the Company’s monitoring obligations in respect of the FCPA matter; and (xxii) other
factors noted herein;

 

•  changes in gross margins due to changing product mix of products sold and the different gross margins on different products, or as a result of extraordinary
production costs associated with the roll-out of new products:

 

•  the Company’s inability to successfully maintain the requirements of Restriction of use of Hazardous Substances (“RoHS”) and Waste Electrical and
Electronic Equipment (“WEEE”) compliance in its products;

 

•  the inability of the Company’s products to displace traditional measurement devices and attain broad market acceptance;
 

•  the impact of competitive products and pricing in the CAM2 market and the broader market for measurement and inspection devices;
 

•  the effects of increased competition as a result of recent consolidation in the CAM2 market;
 

•  risks associated with expanding international operations, such as fluctuations in currency exchange rates, difficulties in staffing and managing foreign
operations, political and economic instability, compliance with import and export regulations, and the burdens and potential exposure of complying with a
wide variety of U.S. and foreign laws and labor practices;

 

•  the loss of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer or other key personnel;
 

•  difficulties in recruiting research and development engineers and application engineers;
 

•  the failure to effectively manage the effects of the Company’s growth;
 

•  variations in the effective income tax rate and the difficulty in predicting the tax rate on a quarterly and annual basis;
 

•  the loss of key suppliers and the inability to find sufficient alternative suppliers in a reasonable period or on commercially reasonable terms; and
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other risks and uncertainties discussed in Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2011.

Overview

The Company designs, develops, manufactures, markets and supports portable, software driven, 3-D measurement and imaging systems that are used
in a broad range of manufacturing, industrial, building construction and forensic applications. The Company’s FaroArm®, FARO Laser ScanArm® and FARO
Gage articulated measuring devices, the FARO Laser Tracker ION™, the FARO Focus , the FARO 3D Imager AMP and their companion CAM2® software,
provide for Computer-Aided Design, or CAD,-based inspection and/or factory-level statistical process control, and high-density surveying. Together, these
products integrate the measurement, quality inspection, and reverse engineering functions with CAD software to improve productivity, enhance product quality
and decrease rework and scrap in the manufacturing process. The Company uses the acronym “CAM2” for this process, which stands for computer-aided
measurement.

As of June 30, 2012, the Company’s products have been purchased by approximately 13,000 customers worldwide, ranging from small machine
shops to such large manufacturing and industrial companies as Audi, Bell Helicopter, Boeing, British Aerospace, Caterpillar, Daimler Chrysler, General Electric,
General Motors, Honda, Johnson Controls, Komatsu America International, Lockheed Martin, Nissan, Siemens and Volkswagen, among many others.

The Company derives revenues primarily from the sale of its FaroArm, FARO Laser ScanArm, FARO Gage, FARO Laser Tracker ION and FARO Focus
measurement equipment, and their related multi-faceted software. Revenue related to these products is generally recognized upon shipment. In addition, the
Company sells one and three-year extended warranties and training and technology consulting services relating to its products. The Company recognizes the
revenue from extended warranties on a straight-line basis. The Company also receives royalties from licensing agreements for its historical medical technology
and recognizes the revenue from these royalties as licensees use the technology.

The Company manufactures its FaroArm, FARO Gage, FARO 3D Imager AMP, and FARO Laser Tracker ION products in the Company’s manufacturing
facilities located in Florida and Pennsylvania for customer orders from the Americas, in its manufacturing facility located in Switzerland for customer orders from
the Europe/Africa region and in its manufacturing facility located in Singapore for customer orders from the Asia/Pacific region. The Company manufactures its
FARO Focus product in its facility located in Stuttgart, Germany. The Company expects all its existing plants to have the production capacity necessary to
support its volume requirements through 2012.

The Company operates in international markets throughout the world. It maintains sales offices in the United States, Brazil, Mexico, France, Germany,
Great Britain, Italy, Netherlands, Poland, Spain, China, India, Japan, Malaysia, Singapore, Thailand, and Vietnam. The Company manages and reports its global
sales in three regions: the Americas, Europe/Africa and Asia/Pacific.

In the six months ended June 30, 2012, 38.5% of the Company’s sales were in the Americas compared to 36.7% in the first of six months of 2011, 35.0%
were in the Europe/Africa region compared to 38.3% in the first six months of 2011, and 26.5% were in the Asia/Pacific region compared to 25.0% in the same
prior year period. In the second quarter of 2012, new order bookings increased $8.5 million, or 13.6%, to $71.0 million from $62.5 million in the prior year
period. New orders in the second quarter of 2012 increased $4.0 million, or 17.1%, in the Americas to $27.4 million from $23.4 million in the prior year period.
New orders in the second quarter of 2012 increased $1.1 million, or 4.5%, to $25.8 million in Europe/Africa from $24.7 million in the second quarter of 2011. In
Asia/Pacific, new orders in the second quarter of 2012 increased $3.4 million, or 23.6%, to $17.8 million from $14.4 million in the second quarter of 2011.
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The Company accounts for wholly owned foreign subsidiaries in the currency of the respective foreign jurisdiction; therefore, fluctuations in exchange
rates may have an impact on inter-company accounts reflected in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The Company is aware of the availability of
off-balance sheet financial instruments to hedge exposure to foreign currency exchange rates, including cross-currency swaps, forward contracts and foreign
currency options (see Foreign Exchange Exposure below). However, it does not regularly use such instruments, and none were utilized in 2011 or the six months
ended June 30, 2012.

The Company was profitable in each quarter in the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010. The Company incurred a net loss in the year
ended December 31, 2009, primarily as a result of a decrease in product sales. The Company attributes the decrease in product sales principally to the decline of
the global economy. Prior to 2009, the Company had a history of sales and earnings growth and 26 consecutive profitable quarters through December 31, 2008.
Its historical sales and earnings growth were the result of a number of factors, including: continuing market demand for and acceptance of the Company’s
products; increased sales activity in part through additional sales staff worldwide, new products and product enhancements such as the FARO Edge Arm and
FARO Focus , and the effect of acquisitions. However, the Company’s historical financial performance is not indicative of its future financial performance.

FCPA Update

As previously reported by the Company, the Company conducted an internal investigation in 2006 into certain payments made by its China subsidiary that
may have violated the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, or the FCPA, and other applicable laws, which we refer to as the FCPA Matter, and entered into settlement
agreements and related documents with the SEC and the U.S. Department of Justice, or the DOJ, in 2008 related to the FCPA Matter. Under the terms of the
agreements with the SEC and the DOJ, the Company assumed a two-year monitoring obligation and other continuing obligations with respect to compliance with
the FCPA and other laws, including full cooperation with the U.S. government and the adoption of a compliance code containing specific provisions intended to
prevent violations of the FCPA. During the second quarter of 2010, the Company, in conjunction with the SEC and the DOJ, completed the selection of the FCPA
monitor. The monitor completed its follow-up review and submitted its final report to the SEC and the DOJ on June 29, 2012. The Company expects that the
monitoring period will not be extended beyond submission of the final report, but the Company has not yet received any response from either the SEC or the DOJ
to the final report. Either or both of them could require additional steps, including extension of the monitorship, under the terms of the agreements that the
Company entered into with the SEC and the DOJ. The Company does not anticipate incurring any further material expenses related to the FCPA Matter. Failure to
comply with any continuing obligations with respect to the FCPA Matter could result in the SEC and the DOJ seeking to impose penalties against the Company in
the future.

Results of Operations

Three Months Ended June 30, 2012 Compared to the Three Months Ended July 2, 2011

Sales increased by $7.1 million, or 11.8%, to $66.8 million in the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $59.7 million for the three months ended July 2,
2011. This increase resulted primarily due to an increase in demand for the Company’s products. A weaker Euro relative to the U.S. Dollar, on average, resulted
in lower sales of approximately $3.0 million, as sales denominated in Euros were translated into U.S. Dollars in the three months ended June 30, 2012. Product
sales increased by $5.8 million, or 11.6%, to $55.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $49.7 million for the second quarter of 2011. Service
revenue increased by $1.3 million, or 13.1%, to $11.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $10.0 million in the same period during the prior
year primarily due to an increase in warranty revenue.

Sales in the Americas region increased by $3.8 million, or 17.4%, to $25.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $21.9 million in the three
months ended July 2, 2011. Product sales in the Americas region increased by $3.7 million, or 21.5%, to $20.9 million for the three months ended June 30,
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2012 from $17.2 million in the second quarter of the prior year. Service revenue in the Americas region increased by $0.1 million, or 2.1%, to $4.8 million for the
three months ended June 30, 2012 from $4.7 million in the same period during the prior year primarily due to an increase in warranty revenue.

Sales in the Europe/Africa region decreased by $0.7 million, or 2.9%, to $23.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $23.9 million in the
three months ended July 2, 2011. The weaker Euro relative to the U.S. Dollar contributed to this decline, as discussed above. Product sales in the Europe/Africa
region decreased by $1.2 million, or 5.9%, to $19.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $20.3 million in the second quarter of the prior year.
Service revenue in the Europe/Africa region increased by $0.5 million, or 13.9%, to $4.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $3.6 million in
the same period during the prior year.

Sales in the Asia/Pacific region increased by $4.0 million, or 28.8%, to $17.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $13.9 million in the
three months ended July 2, 2011. Product sales in the Asia/Pacific region increased by $3.4 million, or 27.9%, to $15.6 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2012 from $12.2 million in the second quarter of the prior year. Service revenue in the Asia/Pacific region increased by $0.6 million, or 35.2%, to $2.3
million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $1.7 million in the same period during the prior year.

Gross profit increased by $3.6 million, or 10.6%, to $37.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $33.5 million for the three months ended
July 2, 2011. Gross margin decreased to 55.5% for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from 56.1% for the three months ended July 2, 2011. The decrease in
gross margin is primarily due to a decrease in gross margin from product sales to 59.7% in the three months ended June 30, 2012 from 61.1% for the three months
ended July 2, 2011, primarily as a result of lower average selling prices due to promotions in preparing for new product introductions and an increase in the sales
mix of the Laser Scanner product sold to Distributors. Gross margin from service revenues increased to 34.8% in the three months ended June 30, 2012 from
31.7% for the three months ended July 2, 2011, primarily due to an increase in warranty revenue.

Selling expenses increased by $0.5 million, or 3.5%, to $15.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $15.3 million for three months ended
July 2, 2011. This increase was primarily due to an increase in compensation and commissions expense of $0.3 million and an increase in marketing and
advertising costs of $0.2 million.

Worldwide sales and marketing headcount increased by 34, or 10.5%, to 357 at June 30, 2012 from 323 at July 2, 2011. Regionally, the Company’s sales
and marketing headcount increased by 15, or 17.0%, to 103 from 88 for the Americas; increased by 3, or 2.6%, in Europe/Africa to 120 from 117; and increased
by 16, or 13.6%, in Asia/Pacific to 134 from 118.

As a percentage of sales, selling expenses decreased to 23.7% of sales in the three months ended June 30, 2012 from 25.6% in the three months ended
July 2, 2011. Regionally, selling expenses were 20.3% of sales in the Americas for the quarter, compared to 21.4% of sales in the second quarter of 2011; 28.8%
of sales for Europe/Africa for the quarter compared to 29.8% of sales from the same period in the prior year; and 22.0% of sales for the quarter compared to
25.2% of sales for Asia/Pacific from the same period in the prior year.

General and administrative expenses increased by $1.2 million, or 17.6%, to $8.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $6.9 million for
the three months ended July 2, 2011, primarily due to an increase in professional fees of $1.2 million related to the FCPA Matter and $0.4 million related to the
patent litigation, offset by a reduction in bad debt expenses of $0.4 million.

Depreciation and amortization expense remained at $1.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011.

Research and development expenses increased to $4.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $3.8 million for the three months ended
July 2, 2011, primarily as a result of an increase in compensation expense of $0.4 million, subcontractors expense of $0.4 million, and an increase in materials
expense of $0.2 million, offset by $0.3 million incurred in the three months ended July 2, 2011 related to the closing and relocation of the R&D facility in
Andover, MA to our existing facility in Kennett Square, PA. Research and development expenses as a percentage of sales increased to 6.8% for the three months
ended June 30, 2012 from 6.4% for the three months ended July 2, 2011.
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Other expense (income), net increased by $0.3 million to $0.4 million of expense for the three months ended June 30, 2012, from $0.1 million of expense
for the three months ended July 2, 2011, primarily as a result of an increase in foreign currency transaction losses resulting from changes in foreign exchange
rates on the value of current intercompany account balances of the Company’s subsidiaries denominated in different currencies.

Income tax expense increased by $0.3 million to $1.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $1.4 million for the three months ended
July 2, 2011. This increase was primarily due to an increase in pretax income. The Company’s effective tax rate increased to 27.0% for the three months ended
June 30, 2012 from 25.3% in the prior year period, primarily as a result of a reduction in the income tax rate of 4.7%, related to the tax benefit of the exercise of
employee stock options in the prior year period. The Company’s tax rate continues to be lower than the statutory tax rate in the United States primarily as a result
of favorable tax rates in foreign jurisdictions. However, the Company’s tax rate could be impacted positively or negatively by geographic changes in the
manufacturing or sales of its products and the resulting effect on taxable income in each jurisdiction.

Net income increased by $0.5 million to $4.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $4.2 million for the three months ended July 2, 2011
as a result of the factors described above.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2012 Compared to the Six Months Ended July 2, 2011

Total sales increased by $19.7 million, or 17.6%, to $132.0 million in the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $112.3 million for the six months ended
July 2, 2011. This increase is attributable primarily to an increase in demand for the Company’s products. A weaker Euro relative to the U.S. Dollar, on average,
resulted in lower sales of approximately $3.9 million, as sales denominated in Euros were translated into U.S. Dollars in the six months ended June 30, 2012.
Product sales increased by $17.2 million, or 18.6%, to $109.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $92.7 million for the six months ended July 2,
2011. Service revenue increased by $2.5 million, or 12.8%, to $22.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $19.6 million in the same period during
the prior year primarily due to an increase in warranty revenue.

Sales in the Americas region increased by $9.6 million, or 23.3%, to $50.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $41.2 million in the six
months ended July 2, 2011. Product sales in the Americas region increased by $9.0 million, or 27.8%, to $41.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012
from $32.4 million in the prior year period. Service revenue in the Americas region increased by $0.6 million, or 6.8%, to $9.4 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2012 from $8.8 million in the same period during the prior year, due primarily to an increase in warranty revenue.

Sales in the Europe/Africa region increased by $3.2 million, or 7.4%, to $46.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $43.0 million in the six
months ended July 2, 2011. The weaker Euro relative to the U.S. Dollar contributed to this decline, as discussed above. Product sales in the Europe/Africa region
increased by $2.3 million, or 6.5%, to $37.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $35.6 million in the prior year period. Service revenue in the
Europe/Africa region increased by $0.9 million, or 12.2%, to $8.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $7.4 million in the same period during the
prior year.

Sales in the Asia/Pacific region increased by $6.9 million, or 24.6%, to $35.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $28.1 million in the six
months ended July 2, 2011. Product sales in the Asia/Pacific region increased by $5.9 million, or 24.0%, to $30.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012
from $24.6 million in the prior year period. Service revenue in the Asia/Pacific region increased by $1.1 million, or 32.4%, to $4.5 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2012 from $3.4 million in the same period during the prior year, due primarily to an increase in warranty revenue.

Gross profit increased by $10.4 million, or 16.4%, to $74.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $63.8 million for the six months ended
July 2, 2011. Gross margin decreased to 56.3% for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from 56.8% for the six months ended July 2, 2011. The decrease in gross
margin is primarily due to a decrease in gross margin from product sales to 61.0% in the six months ended June 30,
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2012 from 62.3% for the six months ended July 2, 2011 primarily as a result of lower average selling prices due to promotions in preparation for new product
introductions, an increase in the sales mix of the Laser Scanner product sold to Distributors, and a change in the historical product sales mix caused by the
increase in sales of the new Laser Scanner product which currently has a lower gross margin. Gross margin from service revenues increased to 32.6% in the six
months ended June 30, 2012 from 30.9% for the six months ended July 2, 2011.

Selling expenses increased by $2.4 million, or 8.2%, to $31.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $29.5 million for the six months
ended July 2, 2011, primarily due to an increase in commission and compensation expense of $1.2 million, an increase in marketing and advertising expenses of
$0.7 million, and an increase in travel related expenses of $0.3 million.

Worldwide sales and marketing headcount increased by 34, or 10.5%, to 357 at June 30, 2012 from 323 at July 2, 2011. Regionally, the Company’s
sales and marketing headcount increased by 15, or 17.0%, to 103 from 88 for the Americas; increased by 3, or 2.6%, in Europe/Africa to 120 from 117; and
increased by 16, or 13.6%, in Asia/Pacific, to 134 from 118.

As a percentage of sales, selling expenses decreased to 24.2% of sales in the six months ended June 30, 2012 from 26.2% in the six months ended
July 2, 2011. Regionally, selling expenses were 21.3% of sales in the Americas for the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to 22.1% of sales in the prior
year period; 28.3% of sales for Europe/Africa for the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to 30.9% of sales from the same period in the prior year; and
22.8% of sales for the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to 25.1% of sales for Asia/Pacific from the same period in the prior year.

General and administrative expenses increased by $1.2 million, or 9.3%, to $14.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $13.5 million
for the six months ended July 2, 2011, primarily due to an increase in professional fees related to the FCPA Matter of $1.2 million and legal fees primarily related
to patent litigation of $0.5 million, offset by a reduction in bad debt expenses of $0.5 million.

Depreciation and amortization expenses remained at $3.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011.

Research and development expenses increased to $8.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $7.4 million for the six months ended
July 2, 2011, primarily as a result of an increase in compensation expenses of $0.9 million, subcontractors expense of $0.7 million, and an increase in materials
expense of $0.2 million, offset by $0.3 million incurred in the prior year period related to the closing and relocation of the R&D facility in Andover, MA to our
existing facility in Kennett Square, PA. Research and development expenses as a percentage of sales increased to 6.8% for the six months ended June 30, 2012
from 6.6% for the six months ended July 2, 2011.

Other expense (income), net increased by $0.2 million to $0.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $0.0 million of expense for the
six months ended July 2, 2011, primarily as a result of an increase in foreign exchange transaction losses resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates on the
value of current intercompany account balances of the Company’s subsidiaries denominated in different currencies.

Income tax expense increased by $1.1 million to $3.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $2.6 million for the six months ended
July 2, 2011. This change was primarily due to an increase in pretax income. The Company’s effective tax rate decreased to 24.2% for the six months ended
June 30, 2012 from 25.8% in the prior year period, primarily as a result of a decrease in taxable income in jurisdictions with higher tax rates and included a
reduction in the income tax rates of 2.8% and 4.2%, respectively, related to the tax benefit of the exercise of employee stock options. The Company’s tax rate
continues to be lower than the statutory tax rate in the United States primarily as a result of favorable tax rates in foreign jurisdictions. However, the Company’s
tax rate could be impacted positively or negatively by geographic changes in the manufacturing or sales of its products and the resulting effect on taxable income
in each jurisdiction.

Net income increased by $4.0 million to $11.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $7.5 million for the six months ended July 2,
2011 as a result of the factors described above.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash and cash equivalents increased by $10.2 million to $74.7 million at June 30, 2012, from $64.5 million at December 31, 2011. The increase was
primarily attributable to net income and non-cash expenses of $15.9 million, proceeds from stock option exercises of $5.6 million, partially offset by a decrease in
working capital of $8.1 million and $3.0 million in purchases of equipment and intangible assets for the six months ended June 30, 2012.

On July 11, 2006, the Company entered into a loan agreement providing for an available line of credit of $30.0 million, which was most recently amended
effective March 15, 2012. Loans under the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, as amended, bear interest at the rate of LIBOR plus a fixed percentage
between 1.50% and 2.00% and require the Company to maintain a minimum cash balance and tangible net worth measured at the end of the Company’s fiscal
quarters. As of June 30, 2012, the Company was in compliance with all of the covenants under the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, as amended. The
term of the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, as amended, extends to March 31, 2015. The Company has not drawn on this line of credit.

The Company believes that its working capital, anticipated cash flow from operations, and credit facility will be sufficient to fund its long-term liquidity
requirements for the foreseeable future.

The Company has no off balance sheet arrangements.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements requires the Company’s management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses, as well as disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The Company bases its estimates
on historical experience, along with various other factors believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Some of these judgments can be subjective and
complex and, consequently, actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. While for any given estimate or assumption
made by the Company’s management there may be other estimates or assumptions that are reasonable, the Company believes that, given the current facts and
circumstances, it is unlikely that applying any such other reasonable estimate or assumption would materially impact the financial statements.

In response to the SEC’s financial reporting release, FR-60, “Cautionary Advice Regarding Disclosure About Critical Accounting Policies,” the
Company has selected its critical accounting policies for purposes of explaining the methodology used in its calculation, in addition to any inherent uncertainties
pertaining to the possible effects on its financial condition. The critical policies discussed below are the Company’s processes of recognizing revenue, the reserve
for excess and obsolete inventory, income taxes, the reserve for warranties and goodwill impairment. These policies affect current assets and operating results and
are therefore critical in assessing the Company’s financial and operating status. These policies involve certain assumptions that, if incorrect, could have an
adverse impact on the Company’s operations and financial position.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue related to the Company’s measurement equipment and related software is generally recognized upon shipment, as the Company considers
the earnings process substantially complete as of the shipping date. Revenue from sales of software only is recognized when no further significant production,
modification or customization of the software is required and where persuasive evidence of a sales agreement exists, delivery has occurred, and the sales price is
fixed or determinable and deemed collectible. Revenues resulting from sales of comprehensive support, training and technology consulting services are
recognized as
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such services are performed. Extended maintenance plan revenues are recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the plan. The Company warrants its
products against defects in design, materials and workmanship for one year. A provision for estimated future costs relating to warranty expense is recorded when
products are shipped. Costs relating to extended maintenance plans are recognized as incurred. Revenue from the licensing agreements for the use of the
Company’s historical technology for medical applications is recognized when the technology is sold by the licensees.

Reserve for Excess and Obsolete Inventory

Since the value of inventory that will ultimately be realized cannot be known with exact certainty, the Company relies upon both past sales history
and future sales forecasts to provide a basis for the determination of the reserve. Inventory is considered obsolete if the Company has withdrawn those products
from the market or had no sales of the product for the past 12 months and has no sales forecasted for the next 12 months. Inventory is considered excess if the
quantity on hand exceeds 12 months of expected remaining usage. The resulting obsolete and excess parts are then reviewed to determine if a substitute usage or
a future need exists. Items without an identified current or future usage are reserved in an amount equal to 100% of the FIFO cost of such inventory. The
Company’s products are subject to changes in technologies that may make certain of its products or their components obsolete or less competitive, which may
increase its historical provisions to the reserve.

Income Taxes

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets on a regular basis to evaluate their recoverability based upon expected future reversals of deferred tax
liabilities, projections of future taxable income over a two-year period, and tax planning strategies that it might employ to utilize such assets, including net
operating loss carryforwards. Based on the positive and negative evidence of recoverability, the Company establishes a valuation allowance against the net
deferred assets of a taxing jurisdiction in which it operates unless it is “more likely than not” that it will recover such assets through the above means. In the
future, the Company’s evaluation of the need for the valuation allowance will be significantly influenced by its ability to achieve profitability and its ability to
predict and achieve future projections of taxable income.

Significant judgment is required in determining the Company’s worldwide provision for income taxes. In the ordinary course of global business,
there are many transactions for which the ultimate tax outcome is uncertain. The Company establishes provisions for income taxes when, despite the belief that
tax positions are fully supportable, there remain certain positions that do not meet the minimum probability threshold as described by Accounting Standards
Codification 740, which is a tax position that is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority. In the ordinary course of
business, the Company and its subsidiaries are examined by various federal, state, and foreign tax authorities. The Company regularly assesses the potential
outcomes of these examinations and any future examinations for the current or prior years in determining the adequacy of its provision for income taxes. The
Company assesses the likelihood and amount of potential adjustments and adjusts the income tax provision, the current tax liability and deferred taxes in the
period in which the facts that gave rise to a revision become known.

Reserve for Warranties

The Company establishes at the time of sale a liability for the one year warranty included with the initial purchase price of equipment, based upon an
estimate of the repair expenses likely to be incurred for the warranty period. The warranty period is measured in installation-months for each major product
group. The warranty reserve is reflected in accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The warranty expense is estimated by applying
the actual total repair expenses for each product group in the prior period and determining a rate of repair expense per installation-month. This repair rate is
multiplied by the number of installation-months of warranty for each product group to determine the provision for warranty expenses for the period. The
Company evaluates its exposure to warranty costs at the end of each period using the estimated expense per installation-month for each major product group, the
number of units remaining
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under warranty and the remaining number of months each unit will be under warranty. The Company has a history of new product introductions and
enhancements to existing products, which may result in unforeseen issues that increase its warranty costs. While such expenses have historically been within
expectations, the Company cannot guarantee this will continue in the future.

Goodwill Impairment

Goodwill represents the excess cost of a business acquisition over the fair value of the net assets acquired. Indefinite-life identifiable intangible
assets and goodwill are not amortized but are tested for impairment. The Company performs an annual review in the fourth quarter of each year, or more
frequently if indicators of potential impairment exist, to determine if the carrying value of the recorded goodwill is impaired. If an asset is impaired, the difference
between the value of the asset reflected on the financial statements and its current fair value is recognized as an expense in the period in which the impairment
occurs.

The Company first performs a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test. If the
Company believes, as a result of its qualitative assessment, that it is not more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount,
then the first and second steps of the goodwill impairment test are unnecessary. The Company elected to early adopt Accounting Standards Update 2011-08 at the
beginning of its fourth quarter of 2011 on a prospective basis for goodwill impairment tests, and performed a qualitative assessment at that time.

If the Company believes, as a result of its qualitative assessment, that it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount, the resultant annual goodwill impairment test is applied using a two-step approach. In performing the first step, the Company calculates the fair
values of the reporting units using discounted cash flows (“DCF”) of each reporting unit. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds the fair value, the
second step is performed to measure the amount of the impairment loss, if any. In the second step, the implied fair value of the goodwill is estimated as the fair
value of the reporting unit as calculated in the first step, less the fair values of the net tangible and intangible assets of the reporting unit other than goodwill. If the
carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess, not to exceed the carrying amount
of the goodwill. Management concluded there was no goodwill impairment in the year ended December 31, 2011.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Company conducts a significant portion of its business outside the United States. At present, 61.5% of its revenues are invoiced, and a significant
portion of its operating expenses are paid, in foreign currencies. Fluctuations in exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and such foreign currencies may have a
material adverse effect on the business, results of operations and financial condition, and could specifically result in foreign exchange gains and losses. The
impact of future exchange rate fluctuations on the results of the Company’s operations cannot be accurately predicted. To the extent that the percentage of its non-
U.S. dollar revenues derived from international sales increases (or decreases) in the future, the Company’s exposure to risks associated with fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates may increase (or decrease).

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the
reports it files or submits under the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including its Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
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As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company’s management carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the
participation of its Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon
that evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, as defined
by Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act, were effective as of June 30, 2012.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Exchange Act) during the quarter ended June 30, 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Patent Matters — On July 11, 2008, Metris USA, Inc. and its affiliates, Metris N.V., Metris IPR N.V. and 3-D Scanners Ltd., filed a complaint
against the Company for patent infringement in the U.S. District Court for the District of Massachusetts (the “Massachusetts Court”) concerning U.S. Patent Nos.
6,611,617 and 7,313,264 (hereinafter, the “patents-in-suit”). Following an acquisition by Nikon Corporation in late 2009, Metris USA, Inc. subsequently changed
its name to Nikon Metrology, Inc., Metris N.V. changed its name to Nikon Metrology NV, and Metris IPR N.V. was dissolved and merged into Nikon Metrology
NV. We refer to each of Nikon Metrology, Inc., Nikon Metrology NV, and 3-D Scanners Ltd. as “Plaintiffs” or “Nikon”.

The Company responded to the complaint with counterclaims alleging that the patents-in-suit, which are generally directed to laser scanning devices,
are invalid, non-infringed, and unenforceable due to fraud during prosecution of the patents in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. On August 31, 2009, the
Massachusetts Court granted the Company’s motion to add counterclaims and defenses for violation of federal and state antitrust and unfair competition laws
based on the alleged knowing assertion of invalid and fraudulent patents. The Company also filed an amended counterclaim to add the Plaintiff’s parent company,
Nikon Corporation, as a counterclaim defendant.

On January 29, 2010, the Company filed a motion for summary judgment that the patents-in-suit are unenforceable due to inequitable conduct during
patent prosecution. Evidentiary hearings on the issue of inequitable conduct commenced on July 19, 2010, and concluded on October 22, 2010. Post-trial briefing
concluded on December 10, 2010. On July 14, 2010, the Company filed a motion for summary judgment of non-infringement of both patents-in-suit. In addition,
during the first quarter of 2010, Nikon served a supplemental interrogatory answer revising its alleged date of conception of the patents-in-suit to an earlier date.
The Company filed a motion to strike the supplemental interrogatory answer, and the parties are waiting for the hearing date on the motion. On August 31, 2010,
Nikon filed a motion for summary judgment against the Company’s counterclaims for antitrust violations and unfair trade practices. The Company filed its
opposition on October 12, 2010.

On February 22, 2011, the Court denied Nikon’s Motion for Summary Judgment on the Company’s counterclaims for anti-trust violations and unfair
trade practices without prejudice. On February 24, 2011, the Court denied the Company’s Motion for Summary Judgment of non-infringement without
prejudice. The parties may renew their respective motions for summary judgment after the Court issues a decision on inequitable conduct, if necessary. No further
motions for summary judgment are expected to be filed. A mediation hearing held on February 18, 2011 to settle the matter was unsuccessful.
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On May 4, 2011, the U.S. District Court for the District of Massachusetts found that with respect to U.S. Patent No. 6,611,617, Nikon’s patent is
unenforceable due to inequitable conduct. The patent dispute with respect to U.S. Patent No. 7,313,264 remains ongoing, and the Company believes it does not
infringe patent 7,313,264 and that it is invalid and unenforceable.

On May 26, 2011 the Company renewed its Motion for Summary Judgment of non-infringement. On June 28, 2011, the Court heard oral arguments
on the Company’s motion, as well as on Nikon’s Renewed Motion for Summary Judgment on the Company’s counterclaims for anti-trust violations and unfair
trade practices. The Court also heard oral arguments regarding an intervening change in the law of inequitable conduct and whether it changes the Court’s May 4,
2011 finding that Nikon’s U.S. Patent No. 6,611,617 is unenforceable due to inequitable conduct. The Court took all matters under advisement, and has not issued
any decisions.

On September 19, 2011, as a result of these changes in the law of inequitable conduct, the Massachusetts Court vacated its May 4, 2011 decision that
U.S. Patent No. 6,611,617 is unenforceable. However, in the same order, the Massachusetts Court ruled that the Company did not infringe U.S. Patent
No. 6,611,617. The Massachusetts Court also granted Nikon’s motion for summary judgment on the Company’s counterclaims for anti-trust violations and unfair
trade practices. The Massachusetts Court denied the Company’s motion for summary judgment of non-infringement of U.S. Patent No. 7,313,264. The effect of
the ruling is to reduce or eliminate the Company’s exposure with respect to claims associated with U.S. Patent No. 6,611,617, while the patent dispute with
respect to U.S. Patent No. 7,313,264 remains ongoing. A pre-trial conference was held on June 6, 2012 and a jury trial on the remaining claims is scheduled to
begin in the Massachusetts Court on July 30, 2012. The Company believes it does not infringe U.S. Patent No. 7,313,264 and that the patent is invalid and
unenforceable, and the Company will continue to vigorously defend itself against these claims.

While it is not possible to predict the outcome of this lawsuit, we believe an adverse determination could have a material impact on the Company’s
business, financial condition or results of operations.

Other than the litigation mentioned above, the Company is not involved in any legal proceedings other than routine litigation arising in the normal
course of business, none of which the Company believes will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of
operations.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information set forth in this Form 10-Q, you should carefully consider the factors discussed under “Risk Factors” in the
Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. These risks could materially and adversely
affect the Company’s business, financial condition, and results of operations. The risks described in the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2011 are not the only risks it faces. The Company’s operations could also be affected by additional factors that are not presently known to the Company or by
factors that it currently considers immaterial to its business.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer

On November 24, 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a $30 million share repurchase program. Acquisitions for the share repurchase
program will be made from time to time at prevailing prices as permitted by securities laws and other legal requirements, and subject to market conditions and
other factors. The share repurchase program may be discontinued at any time. There is no restriction date or other restriction governing the period over which the
Company can repurchase shares under the program. The Company made no stock repurchases during the first half of fiscal 2012 under this program.
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Item 6. Exhibits
 
    3.1

  

Articles of Incorporation, as amended (Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, No. 333-32983, and incorporated
herein by reference)

    3.2
  

Amended and Restated Bylaws (Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to current Report on Form 8-K, dated January 28, 2010 and incorporated herein by
reference)

    4.1
  

Specimen Stock Certificate (Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, No. 333-32983, and incorporated herein by
reference)

  10.1
  

Termination Agreement, dated June 18, 2012, by and among Siggi Buss and FARO Europe GmbH & Co. KG, FARO Verwaltungs GmbH, and
FARO Deutschland Holding GmbH.*

  10.2   Termination Agreement, dated June 18, 2012, by and between Siggi Buss and FARO Swiss Holding GmbH.*

  31-A   Certification of the President and Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

  31-B   Certification of the Principal Financial and Accounting Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

  32-A   Certification of the President and Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

  32-B   Certification of the Principal Financial and Accounting Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS   XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH   XBRL Schema Document

101.CAL   XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF   XBRL Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB   XBRL Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE   XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document
 
* Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.
 

  FARO Technologies, Inc.
  (Registrant)

Date: July 31, 2012  By: /s/ Keith S. Bair
  Keith S. Bair

  

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Duly Authorized Officer and Principal Financial Officer)

 
31



Exhibit 10.1

18 JUNI 2012 / 18 JUNE 2012

 
 

AUFHEBUNGSVERTRAG

Termination Agreement
  

zwischen / between

FARO EUROPE GMBH & CO. KG

als “Gesellschaft”/ as “Company”

und / and

FARO VERWALTUNGS GMBH

als “FARO Verwaltungs GmbH” / as “FARO Verwaltungs GmbH”

und / and

FARO DEUTSCHLAND HOLDING GMBH

als “ FARO Deutschland Holding GmbH” / as “ FARO Deutschland Holding GmbH”

und / and

SIEGFRIED BUSS

als “Herr Buss” / as “Mr. Buss”



VORBEMERKUNG   PREAMBLE

Herr Buss ist Geschäftsführer der FARO Verwaltungs GmbH und der FARO
Deutschland Holding GmbH, wobei erstere Komplementärin und zweitere
Kommanditistin der Gesellschaft sind. Das Dienstverhältnisses besteht
zwischen Herrn Buss und der Gesellschaft und hat seine Grundlage im
“Contract of Employment” vom 20. April 2004 sowie dem
Änderungsvertrag vom 30. Juni 2009.   

Mr. Buss is director of FARO Verwaltungs GmbH and FARO Deutschland
Holding GmbH, whereby the former is a general partner and the latter a
limited partner of the Company. The service relationship between Mr. Buss
and the Company is based on the Contract of Employment of 20 April 2004
and the amending agreement of 30 June 2009.

Die Parteien sind überein gekommen, das zwischen ihnen bestehende
Dienstverhältnis im beiderseitigen Einvernehmen mit Wirkung zum Ablauf
des 31. Juli 2012 zu beenden. Herr Buss wurde bereits zuvor von seinen
Ämtern als Geschäftsführer der FARO Verwaltungs GmbH und der FARO
Deutschland Holding GmbH abberufen.   

The parties have mutually agreed to end the service relationship existing
between them with effect from expiry of 31 July 2012. Prior thereto Mr.
Buss has been removed from the office of a director of FARO Verwaltungs
GmbH and FARO Deutschland Holding GmbH.

Dies vorausgeschickt, vereinbaren die Parteien was folgt:   Therefore, the parties agree as follows:

§ 1
Vertragsaufhebung / Abberufung

  

§ 1
Mutually agreed termination / removal from

office

(1)

  

Die Parteien sind sich darüber einig, dass das zwischen ihnen
bestehende Dienstverhältnis einschließlich etwaiger
Änderungsoder Zusatzvereinbarungen sowie jedes etwaige
sonstige Dienst- oder Anstellungsverhältnis mit der Gesellschaft
einvernehmlich mit Wirkung zum 31. Juli 2012 aufgehoben wird.   

(1)

  

The parties agree that the service relationship between them
including any amending or additional agreements as well as any
other service or employment relationship with the Company shall
be terminated by mutual agreement with effect from 31 July
2012.

(2)
  

Die Parteien sind sich einig, dass soweit weitere Dienst- oder
Anstellungsverhältnisse   

(2)
  

The parties agree that to the extent any service relationships or
employment relationships



  

zwischen Herrn Buss und anderen, mil der Gesellschaft
verbundenen Unternehmen bestehen diese mil Abschluss dieses
Aufhebungsvertrages beendet werden. Die Gesellschaft ist
insoweit zur Abgabe aller für eine Beendigung der Dienst- und
Anstellungsverhältnisse notwendigen Willenserklärungen auch für
andere, mit der Gesellschaft verbundenen Unternehmen
ermächtigt.     

exist between Mr. Buss and other companies affiliated with the
Company they shall end on conclusion of this termination
agreement. In this respect the Company is authorized to submit
any declarations of intent required to end such service and
employment relationships, even on behalf of other companies
affiliated with the Company.

(3)

  

Herr Buss wurde durch Gesellschafterbeschluss vom 9. März 2012
mit sofortiger Wirkung von seinen Ämtern als Geschäftsführer der
FARO Verwaltungs GmbH und der FARO Deutschland Holding
GmbH abberufen. Vorstehender Satz 1 stellt einen echten Vertrag
zugunsten Dritter dar.   

(3)

  

By shareholders’ resolution of 9 March 2012 Mr. Buss has been
removed from his office as director of FARO Verwaltungs GmbH
and FARO Deutschland Holding GmbH with immediate effect.
Sentence 1 above constitutes a genuine agreement in favor of
third parties.

(4)

  

Herr Buss verpflichtet sich, an der Berichtigung des
Handelsregisters mitzuwirken und alle Handlungen vorzunehmen
sowie Erklärungen abzugeben, die für die Eintragung der
Beendigung der Geschäftsführerämter von Herrn Buss bei FARO
Verwaltungs GmbH und der FARO Deutschland Holding Gmbh
erforderlich sind.   

(4)

  

Mr. Buss undertakes to cooperate with the amendment to the
commercial register and to undertake all acts and make all
declarations required to register termination of Mr. Buss’ office as
director of FARO Verwaltungs GmbH and FARO Deutschland
Holding GmbH.

§ 2
Aufgabenbereich / Urlaub /

Freistellung   

§ 2
Duties / leave /

release from obligation to work

(1)

  

Der bisherige Aufgabebereich von Herrn Buss als Geschäftsführer
endet mit dem Datum der Amtsniederlegung. Danach wird Herr
Buss bis zur Beendigung des Dienstverhältnisses noch folgende
Aufgaben übernehmen:   

(1)

  

The previous area of responsibility of Mr. Buss as director shall
end on the date of resignation from office. After this time until the
end of the service relationship Mr. Buss shall carry out the
following duties:

  

-
 

Auf Anforderung der Gesellschaft deren Beratung im
Zusammenhang     

-
 

At the Company’s request, provide consulting services to
the Company



   

mit bestimmten Projekten, die Herr Buss zum Zeitpunkt des
Abschlusses dieser Vereinbarung betreut hat; und      

in connection with certain projects which Mr. Buss was
overseeing as of the date of this Agreement; and

  

-

 

Gewährleistung angemessener Überleitungsunterstützung
auf Anforderung der Gesellschaft, um einen ruhige
Übergang der Pflichten von Herrn Buss auf seine(n)
Nachfolger sicher zu stellen.     

-

 

Provide reasonable transition assistance upon request of the
Company to ensure a smooth transfer of Mr. Buss’s duties
to his successor(s).

(2)

  

Die Gesellschaft gewährt Herrn Buss den ihm vertragsgemäß
zustchenden Erholungsurlaub bis zur Beendigung des
Dienstverhältnisses in natura. Die Urlaubsgewährung erfolgt in
Abstimmung mit Herrn Buss.   

(2)

  

The Company shall grant Mr. Buss the leave to which he is
entitled under contract up until the end of the service relationship
in natura. Leave shall be granted in agreement with Mr. Buss.

(3)

  

Die Gesellschaft ist berechtigt, Herrn Buss jederzeit von der
Erbringung seiner Dienstleistung widerruflich oder unwiderruflich
unter Fortzahlung der Vergütung gemäß § 3 dieser Vereinbarung
freizustellen. Eine unwiderrufliche Freistellung erfolgt unter
Anrechnung und Abgeltung der Herrn Buss noch zustehenden
Urlaubsansprüche, soweit diese nicht bereits gemäß vorstehendem
Absatz 2 erledigt sind.   

(3)

  

The Company is entitled to revocably or irrevocably release Mr.
Buss from the obligation to work at any time while continuing to
pay his salary pursuant to § 3 of this agreement. Any leave to
which Mr. Buss is still entitled, provided such leave entitlement
has not already been settled in accordance with paragraph 2
above, shall be deemed set off or settled through an irrevocable
release from the duty to work.

§ 3
Vergütung   

§ 3
Remuneration

(1)

  

Herr Buss erhält monatlich bis zum Vertragsende am 31. Juli 2012
seine festen vertraglichen Bezüge in Höhe von EUR 11.166,67
brutto. Die Bezüge werden jeweils am Monatsende unter
Berücksichtigung der im Auszahlungszeitpunkt geltenden steuer-
und sozialversicherungsrechtlichen Vorgaben ausbezahlt.   

(1)

  

Mr. Buss shall receive his fixed monthly remuneration of EUR
11,166.67 gross until the contract ends on 31 July 2012. The
remuneration shall be paid at the end of each month taking into
account the tax and social insurance law requirements applicable
at the time of payment.



(2)

  

Die Parteien sind sich darüber einig, dass Herr Buss über die in
diesem Vertrag geregelten Vergütungsansprüche hinaus keine
weiteren Vergütungsansprüche, insbesondere keine anteilige
Tantieme für das Jahr 2012, gegen die Gesellschaft zustehen.
Hiervon unberührt bleiben die in diesem Aufhebungsvertrag
geregelten Zahlungsansprüche, insbesondere der Anspruch auf
Abfindung gemäß nachfolgendem § 4.   

(2)

  

The parties agree that Mr. Buss is not entitled to any further
remuneration claims against the Company which exceed the
remuneration claims regulated in this agreement, in particular he
is not entitled a pro rata profit-related bonus for 2012. This shall
not affect payment claims regulated in this termination
agreement, in particular the claim to a severance payment
pursuant to § 4 below.

§ 4
Abfindung   

§ 4
Severance payment

(1)

  

Die Gesellschaft zahlt Herrn Buss aus Anlass der Beendigung des
Dienstverhältnisses und zum Ausgleich eventuell hieraus
resultierender wirtschaftlicher Nachteile eine Abfindung in Höhe
von elf Monatsfestgehältern, insgesamt EUR 145.617,87 brutto (in
Worten: einhundertfünfundvierzigtausendsechshundertsiebzehn
Euro und siebenundachtzig Cent brutto).   

(1)

  

Owing to the end of the service relationship and in order to
compensate for any economic disadvantages which may arise as a
result the Company shall pay Mr. Buss a severance payment in
the amount of eleven fixed monthly salaries, in total EUR
145.617,87 gross (in words: one hundred and forty five thousand
six hundred seventeen and 87/100 Euro gross).

(2)

  

Der Anspruch auf Abfindung entsteht mit Beendigung des
Dienstverhältnisses. Die erste Rate der Abfindung in Höhe von
EUR 43.685,37 wird am 1. August 2012 zur Zahlung fällig. Die
zweite Rate in Höhe von EUR 101.932,50 wird am 1. Januar 2013
zur Zahlung fällig. Die Auszahlung erfolgt nach Maßgabe der im
Auszahlungszeitpunkt gültigen steuerlichen und
sozialversicherungsrechtlichen Vorgaben.   

(2)

  

The entitlement to a severance payment shall arise at the end of
the service relationship. The first instalment of the severance
payment shall be EUR 43.685,37 due for payment on 1 August,
2012. The second instalment of EUR 101.932,50 shall be due for
payment on 1 January 2013. Payment shall be made in
accordance with the tax and social insurance law requirements
which apply at the time of payment.

(3)

  

Eine Aufrechnung gegen den Abfindungsanspruch ist lediglich
mit unbestrittenen oder rechtskräftig festgestellten Forderungen
zulässig.   

(3)

  

Claims may only be set off against the severance entitlement with
undisputed claims or which have been declared final and absolute
by a court.



§ 5
Entlastung   

§ 5
Discharge from liability

(1)

  

Die Gesellschaft wirkt darauf hin, dass Herrn Buss für seine
Tätigkeit als Geschäftsführer der FARO Verwaltungs GmbH und
der FARO Deutschland Holding GmbH für das Geschäftsjahr
2011 Entlastung erteilt wird, sobald die testierten Jahresabschlüsse
vorliegen und sofern nach den gesetzlichen Bestimmungen
beziehungsweise der Satzung eine Entlastung möglich ist.   

(1)

  

The Company shall aim to grant Mr. Buss discharge for his
activity as director of FARO Verwaltungs GmbH and FARO
Deutschland Holding GmbH for the business year 2011 as soon as
the audited financial statements are available and to the extent
that such discharge is possible pursuant to statutory provisions
and the articles of incorporation.

(2)

  

Für seine Tätigkeit bei der Gesellschaft wird Herrn Buss für das
Geschäftsjahr 2011 Entlastung erteilt werden, sobald die testierten
Jahresabschlüsse vorliegen und sofern nach den gesetzlichen
Bestimmungen beziehungsweise des Gesellschaftsvertrages eine
Entlastung möglich ist.   

(2)

  

For his activity for the Company for the business year 2011, Mr.
Buss shall be granted discharge as soon as the audited financial
statements are available and to the extent that such discharge is
possible pursuant to statutory provisions and the articles of
incorporation.

§ 6
Herausgabe von Unterlagen   

§ 6
Surrender of documents

(1)

  

Herr Buss wird der Gesellschaft alle ihm von der Gesellschaft
oder von mit der Gesellschaft verbundenen Unternehmen
überlassenen, nicht bestimmungsgemäß an Dritte
weitergegebenen/vernichteten Gegenstände und Unterlagen,
insbesondere sämtliche Geschäftsunterlagen, einschließlich
Datenträger, private dienstliche Aufzeichnungen (auch Kopien
davon) sowie das ihm überlassene Zubehör (insbesondere alle zur
Verfügung gestellten Computer und/oder Mobiltelefone)
unaufgefordert spätestens am letzten Tag des Bestehens des
Dienstverhältnisses, auf Verlangen   

(1)

  

Mr. Buss shall return to the Company any items provided to him
by the Company or companies affiliated with the Company which
have not been duly passed on to third parties or destroyed, in
particular all business documents, including data carriers, private
business records (including copies thereof) and equipment
provided to his (in particular any computer and/or cell provided)
without special request no later than the last day of the service
relationship, or if so requested earlier, in due and proper condition
at the registered office of the Company. Mr. Buss may make one
copy of



  

auch bereits zuvor, in ordnungsgemäßem Zustand am Sitz der
Gesellschaft zurückgeben. Schriftstücke/Unterlagen, die sein
persönliches Vertragsverhältnis betreffen, dürfen von Herrn Buss
einmal kopiert und als Kopie zur Wahrnehmung seiner
persönlichen Interessen behalten werden. Herr Buss wird der
Gesellschaft die von ihm kopierten Dokumente schriftlich
auflisten und diese Dokumente gesondert von den übrigen
Gegenständen herausgeben.     

letters/documents concerning his personal contractual relationship
and retain a copy thereof for the purpose of safeguarding his
personal interests. Mr. Buss shall provide the Company with a
written list of the documents which he has copied and return these
separately from the other items.

(2)

  

Soweit sich Unterlagen/Kopien auf privat gehörenden EDV-
Geräten/Datenträgern von Herrn Buss befinden sind die Dateien
auf Datenträger zu überspielen, die Datenträger wie die anderen
Gegenstände an die Gesellschaft herauszugeben und die Daten auf
der privaten EDV unverzüglich zu 1öschen. Herr Buss verpflichtet
sich, etwaige auf einem in seinem Besitz oder Eigentum
befindlichen Computer aufgespielten Programme, für welche die
Gesellschaft oder ein verbundenes Unternehmen die Lizenz
erworben hat, spätestens zum rechtlichen Beendigungszeitpunkt
des Dienstverhältnisses zu löschen. Zurückbehaltungsrechte sind
ausgeschlossen.   

(2)

  

Should there be any documents/copies on privately owned IT
equipment/data carriers of Mr. Buss the files shall be copied onto
data carriers, the data carriers shall be returned to the Company in
the same way as the other items and the files on private IT
equipment shall be deleted without undue delay. Mr. Buss
undertakes to delete any programmes on computers in his
possession or ownership for which the Company or an affiliated
company has acquired the licence at the latest by the time when
the service relationship legally ends. There shall be no rights of
retention.

§ 7
Reisekosten   

§ 7
Travel expenses

(1)
  

Herr Buss reicht alle offenen Reisekosten, die bis einschließlich
31. Juli 2012 angefallen sind, bis spätestens 31. Juli 2012 ein.   

(1)
  

Mr. Buss shall submit all outstanding travel expenses incurred up
to and including 31 July 2012 on or before 31 July 2012.

(2)   Weitere Reisekosten werden nicht erstattet.   (2)   No further travel expenses shall be reimbursed.



§ 8
Geheimhaltung   

§ 8
Confidentiality

(1)

  

Die Parteien verpflichten sich, über diesen Vertrag und seinen
Inhalt strengstes Stillschweigen zu bewahren. Herr Buss ist
berechtigt, diese Vereinbarung gegenüber amtlichen Stellen
vorzulegen, soweit er hierzu aus rechtlichen Gründen verpflichtet
ist oder die Vorlage zur Wahrnehmung eigener berechtigter
Interessen erforderlich ist.   

(1)

  

The parties undertake to observe confidentiality with respect to
this agreement and its content. Mr. Buss is entitled to disclose this
agreement to official authorities if he is obliged to do so under
statute or if so required in observing his own justified interests.

(2)

  

Herr Buss wird über alle ihm anlässlich seiner Tätigkeit für die
Gesellschaft zur Kenntnis gelangten, nicht allgemein bekannten
geschäftlichen und persönlichen Angelegenheiten der
Gesellschaft, der mit ihr verbundenen Unternehmen und/oder
Mitarbeitern, Kunden und sonstigen Geschäftspartnern aller
vorgenannten Gesellschaften, auch soweit eine Angelegenheit ihm
gegenüber nicht ausdrücklich als vertraulich bezeichnet wurden,
Dritten gegenüber strengstes Stillschweigen bewahren. Diese
Verschwiegenheitspflicht ist zeitlich unbegrenzt.   

(2)

  

Mr. Buss shall observe strictest secrecy vis-à-vis third parties with
regard to all business and personal matters of the Company, all
affiliated companies and/or employees, customers and other
business partners of all the above-mentioned companies which
have become known to him in the course of his work for the
Company and which are not generally known, even if he has not
been expressly told that such matters are confidential. This
obligation of confidentiality shall be for an indefinite term.

§ 9
Zeugnis   

§ 9
Letter of recommendation

Herr Buss erhält von der Gesellschaft auf Anforderung ein wohlwollendes
qualifiziertes Schlusszeugnis mit der Note “sehr gut”.

  

Mr. Buss shall receive a favourable qualified final reference from the
Company on request. This reference shall include the statement that his
work was “very good”.



§ 10
Erledigungsklausel   

§ 10
Settlement clause

(1)

  

Die Parteien sind sich darüber einig, dass mit Erfüllung der
vorstehenden §§ 1-10 sämtliche gegenseitigen Ansprüche der
Parteien aus oder im Zusammenhang mit dem
Anstellungsverhältnis und aus Anlass oder im Zusammenhang mit
seiner Beendigung, gleich aus welchem Rechtsgrund sie bestehen
und gleich ob bekannt oder unbekannt, erledigt sind. Satz 1 gilt
entsprechend für das Verhältnis von Herrn Buss zu FARO
Verwaltungs GmbH und FARO Deutschland Holding GmbH.,
wobei insoweit Ansprüche der Gesellschaft gegenüber Herrn Buss
von der Erledigung ausgenommen sind, auf welche die
Gesellschaft kraft Gesetzes im Interesse des Gläubigerschutzes
nicht verzichten kann (z.B. §§ 30, 43 Abs. 3, 9b GmbHG).   

(1)

  

The parties agree that with fulfilment of §§ 1-10 above all mutual
claims of the parties from or in connection with the employment
relationship and on the occasion of or in connection with its
termination irrespective of legal grounds and irrespective of
whether known or unknown are settled. Sentence 1 shall apply
accordingly to the relationship of Mr. Buss to FARO Verwaltungs
GmbH and FARO Deutschland Holding GmbH, whereby claims
of the Companv vis-à-vis Mr. Buss cannot be waived by virtue of
law in the interest of creditor protection (e.g. §§ 30, 43, (3)
Limited Liability Companies Act).

(2)

  

Herr Buss verzichtet darüber hinaus im Wege eines echten
Vertrages zugunsten Dritter auf alle Ansprüche aus oder im
Zusammenhang mit dem Anstellungsverhältnis und aus Anlass
oder im Zusammenhang mit seiner Beendigung, gleich aus
welchem Rechtsgrund sie bestehen und gleich ob bekannt oder
unbekannt, welche ihm gegen Unternehmen, die mit der
Gesellschaft verbunden sind, zustehen. Die Gesellschaft nimmt
diesen Verzicht an.   

(2)

  

Mr. Buss also waives within the meaning of a genuine agreement
in favour of third parties all claims to which he is entitled against
the companies affiliated with the Company from or in connection
with the employment relationship and on the occasion of or in
connection with the termination thereof, irrespective of the legal
grounds for their existence and irrespective of whether known or
unknown. The Company hereby accepts this waiver.

(3)

  

Rechte im Zusammenhang mit der Ausübung oder Abrechnung
von Anteilsoptionen (equity awards), welche Herrn Buss auf
Grundlage eines vorher aufgestellten anteilsbezogenen
Mitarbeiterbeteiligungsplans (equity incentive plans) der
Gesellschaft   

(3)

  

Nothing in this clause shall adversely affect any rights Mr. Buss
may have with respect to the exercise or settlement of equity
awards previously issued under the Company’s or under any
affiliated company’s equity incentive plans.



  

oder einem mit der Gesellschaft verbundenen Unternehmen
möglicherweise zustehen, bleiben von dieser Regelung unberührt.      

§ 11
Sonstige Bestimmungen   

§ 11
Miscellaneous

(1)

  

Änderungen und Ergänzungen dieses Vertrages bedürfen zu ihrer
Wirksamkeit der Schriftform. Dies gilt auch für eine Änderung
dieser Schriftformklausel. Mündliche oder schriftliche
Nebenabreden wurden nicht getroffen.   

(1)

  

Amendments and additions to this agreement shall be valid only
if made in writing. This also applies to any amendment to this
written form clause. There are no verbal or written side
agreements.

(2)

  

Dieser Vertrag enthält eine deutsche und eine englische Fassung.
Die englische Fassung ist lediglich eine unverbindliche
Übersetzung; im Zweifelsfall ist allein die deutsche Fassung
maßgeblich.   

(2)

  

This agreement contains a German and an English version. The
English version merely constitutes a convenience translation; in
the event of doubt only the German version shall be authoritative.

(3)

  

Von diesem Aufhebungsvertrag sind zwei Originale gefertigt
worden. Beide Parteien bestätigen mit ihrer Unterschrift, jeweils
ein Original dieses Aufhebungsvertrages erhalten zu haben.   

(3)

  

There are two originals of this termination agreement. With their
signatures both parties confirm that they have received an original
of this termination agreement.

§ 12
Rechtswahl unil Gerichtsstand   

§ 12
Choice of law and jurisdiction

Dieser Vertrag und seine Auslegung unterliegen dem Recht der
Bundesrepublik Deutschland. Gerichtsstand für alle Streitigkeiten über
Rechte und Pflichten aus diesem Vertrag einschließlich seiner Wirksamkeit
ist der Sitz der Gesellschaft.   

This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the Federal Republic of Germany. Place of jurisdiction for all
disputes regarding rights and duties under this agreement, including its
validity shall be the registered office of the company.



§ 13
Salvatorische Klausel   

§ 13
Severability

Die Unwirksamkeit oder Undurchführbarkeit einer oder mehrerer
Regelungen dieses Vertrages lässt die Wirksamkeit der übrigen Regelungen
dieses Vertrages unberührt. Dasselbe gilt für den Fall, dass der Vertrag eine
an sich notwendige Regelung nicht enthält. An die Stelle der unwirksamen
oder undurchführbaren Regelung oder zur Ausfüllung der Regelungslücke
tritt die gesetzlich zulässige und durchführbare Regelung, die dem Sinn und
Zweck der unwirksamen, undurchführbaren oder fehlenden Regelung nach
der Vorstellung der Parteien wirtschaftlich am nächsten kommt.   

Should one or more provisions of this agreement be or become invalid or
unenforceable, this shall not affect the validity and enforceability of the
remaining provisions of this agreement. The same shall apply if the
agreement does not contain an essential provision. In place of the invalid or
unenforceable provision, or to fill a contractual lacuna, such valid and
enforceable provision shall apply which reflects as closely as possible the
commercial intention of the parties as regards the invalid, unenforceable or
missing provision.



UNTERSCHRIFTEN   SIGNATURES

Korntal-Münchingen, den 18.06.2012   Korntal-Münchingen, June 18th 2012

  

  

(FARO Europe GmbH & CO. KG)   (Siegfried Buss)

  

  

(FARO Verwaltungs GmbH)   

  

  

(FARO Deutschland Holding)   

  

(Jay Freeland FARO Technologies, Inc.)   
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AUFHEBUNGSVERTRAG

Termination Agreement
  

zwischen / between

FARO Swiss Holding GmbH

als “Gesellschaft”/ as “Company”

und / and

SIEGFRIED BUSS

als “Herr Buss” / as “Mr. Buss”



VORBEMERKUNG   PREAMBLE

Herr Buss ist Geschäftsführer der FARO Swiss Holding GmbH. Das
Arbeitsverhältnis zwischen Herrn Buss und der Gesellschaft hat seine
Grundlage im Anstellungsvertrag vom 21. März 2004 sowie dem “Nachtrag
zum Arbeitsvertrag” vom 30. Juni 2009.   

Mr. Buss is managing director of FARO Swiss Holding GmbH. The
employment relationship between Mr. Buss and the Company is based on
the Contract of Employment of 21 March 2004 and the addendum to the
Contract of Employment of 30 June 2009.

Die Parteien sind übereingekommen, das zwischen ihnen bestehende
Arbeitsverhältnis im beiderseitigen Einvernehmen mit Wirkung zum Ablauf
des 31. Juli 2012 zu beenden. Herr Buss wurde bereits zuvor von seinem
Amt als Geschäftstührer und Vorsitzender der Gesellschaft abberufen.   

The parties have mutually agreed to end the employment relationship
existing between them with effect from expiry of 31 July 2012. Prior
thereto Mr. Buss has been removed from the office of a managing director
and chairman of the Company.

Herr Buss steht zusätzlich als Geschäftsführer der FARO Verwaltungs
GmbH und der FARO Deutschland Holding GmbH in einem
Dienstverhältnis mit FARO Europe GmbH & Co. KG. Dieses
Dienstverhältnis wird mit separatem Aufhebungsvertrag ebenfalls mit
Wirkung zum Ablauf des 31. Juli 2012 beendet.   

Mr. Buss is further employed by FARO Europe GmbH & Co. KG as
managing director of FARO Verwaltungs GmbH and FARO Deutschland
Holding GmbH. This employment relationship will also be terminated with
effect from expiry of 31 July 2012.

Dies vorausgeschickt, vereinbaren die Parteien – unter Berücksichtigung der
Interessen beider Parteien – was folgt:   

Therefore, the parties agree – under consideration of the interests of both
parties – as follows:

 

§ 1
Vertragsaufhebung / Abberufung

  

§ 1
Mutually agreed termination / removal from

office

(1)

 

Die Parteien sind sich darüber einig, dass der zwischen ihnen
bestehende Arbeitsvertrag einschließlich etwaiger Änderungsoder
Zusatzvereinbarungen sowie jedes etwaige sonstige
Arbeitsverhältnis von Herrn Buss mit der Gesellschaft
einvernehmlich mit Wirkung zum 31. Juli 2012 aufgehoben wird.   

(1)

 

The parties agree that the employment contract between them
including any amending or additional agreements as well as any
other employment relationship of Mr. Buss with the Company
shall be terminated by mutual agreement with effect from 31 July
2012.



(2)

  

Die Parteien sind sich einig, dass soweit weitere
Arbeitsverhältnisse zwischen Herrn Buss und anderen, mit der
Gesellschaft verbundenen Unternehmen bestehen, diese mit
Abschluss dieses Aufhebungsvertrages beendet werden. Die
Gesellschaft ist insoweit zur Abgabe aller für eine Beendigung der
Arbeitsverhältnisse notwendigen Willenserklärungen auch für
andere, mit der Gesellschaft verbundenen Unternehmen
ermächtigt.   

(2)

  

The parties agree that to the extent any employment relationships
exist between Mr. Buss and other companies affiliated with the
Company, they shall end on conclusion of this termination
agreement. In this respect the Company is authorized to submit
any declarations of intent required to end such employment
relationships, even on behalf of other companies affiliated with
the Company.

(3)

  

Herr Buss wurde bereits durch Gesellschafterbeschluss vom 6.
März 2012 mit sofortiger Wirkung von seinem Amt als
Geschäftsführer und Vorsitzender der FARO Swiss Holding
GmbH abberufen.   

(3)

  

By members’ resolution of 6 March 2012 Mr. Buss has been
removed from his office as managing director and chairman of
FARO Swiss Holding GmbH with immediate effect.

(4)

  

Herr Buss verpflichtet sich, an der Berichtigung des
Handelsregisters mitzuwirken und alle Handlungen vorzunehmen
sowie Erklärungen abzugeben, die für die Eintragung der
Beendigung des Geschäftsführeramts von Herrn Buss bei der
Gesellschaft erforderlich sind.   

(4)

  

Mr. Buss undertakes to cooperate with the amendment to the
commercial register and to undertake all acts and make all
declarations required to register termination of Mr. Buss’ office as
managing director of the Company.

§ 2
Aufgabenbereich / Ferien /

Freistellung   

§ 2
Duties / leave /

release from obligation to work

(1)

  

Der bisherige Aufgabebereich von Herrn Buss als Geschäftsführer
endet mit dem Datum der Amtsniederlegung. Danach wird Herr
Buss bis zur Beendigung des Arbeitsverhältnisses noch folgende
Aufgaben übernehmen:   

(1)

  

The previous area of responsibility of Mr. Buss as managing
director shall end on the date of resignation from office. After this
time until the end of the employment relationship Mr. Buss shall
carry out the following duties:

  

-
 

Auf Anforderung der Gesellschaft deren Beratung im
Zusammenhang     

-
 

At the Company’s request, provide consulting services to
the Company



   

mit bestimmten Projekten, die Herr Buss zum Zeitpunkt des
Abschlusses dieser Vereinbarung betreut hat; und      

in connection with certain projects which Mr. Buss was
overseeing as of the date of this Agreement; and

  

-

 

Gewährleistung angemessener Überleitungsunterstützung
auf Anforderung der Gesellschaft, um einen ruhigen
Übergang der Pflichten von Herrn Buss auf seine(n)
Nachfolger sicher zu stellen.     

-

 

Provide reasonable transition assistance upon request of the
Company to ensure a smooth transfer of Mr. Buss’s duties
to his successor(s).

(2)

  

Die Gesellschaft gewährt Herrn Buss die ihm vertragsgemäss
zustehenden Ferien bis zur Beendigung des Arbeitsverhältnisses in
natura. Der Ferienbezug erfolgt in Abstimmung mit Herrn Buss.

  

(2)

  

The Company shall grant Mr. Buss the leave to which he is
entitled under contract up until the end of the employment
relationship in natura. Leave shall be granted in agreement with
Mr. Buss.

(3)

  

Die Gesellschaft ist berechtigt, Herrn Buss jederzeit von der
Erbringung seiner Arbeitsleistung widerruflich oder
unwiderruflich unter Fortzahlung der Vergütung gemäss § 3 dieser
Vereinbarung freizustellen. Eine unwiderrufliche Freistellung
erfolgt unter Anrechnung und Abgeltung der Herrn Buss noch
zustehenden Ferienansprüche, soweit diese nicht bereits gemäss
vorstehendem Absatz 2 erledigt sind.   

(3)

  

The Company is entitled to revocably or irrevocably release Mr.
Buss from the obligation to work at any time while continuing to
pay his salary pursuant to § 3 of this agreement. Any leave to
which Mr. Buss is still entitled, provided such leave entitlement
has not already been settled in accordance with paragraph 2
above, shall be deemed set off or settled through an irrevocable
release from the duty to work.

§ 3
Vergütung   

§ 3
Remuneration

(1)

  

Herr Buss erhält monatlich bis zum Vertragsende am 31. Juli 2012
seine festen vertraglichen Bezüge (Basissalär) in Höhe von CHF
11’439.70 brutto. Die Bezüge werden jeweils am Monatsende
unter Berücksichtigung der im Auszahlungszeitpunkt geltenden
steuer- und sozialversicherungsrechtlichen Vorgaben ausbezahlt.   

(1)

  

Mr. Buss shall receive his fixed monthly remuneration (basic
salary) of CHF 11’439.70 gross until the contract ends on 31 July
2012. The remuneration shall be paid at the end of each month
taking into account the tax and social insurance law requirements
applicable at the time of payment.



(2)

  

Die Parteien sind sich darüber einig, dass Herr Buss über die in
diesem Vertrag geregelten Vergütungsansprüche hinaus keine
weiteren Vergütungsansprüche, insbesondere keinen anteiligen
Bonus für das Jahr 2012, gegen die Gesellschaft zustehen.
Hiervon unberührt bleiben die in diesem Aufhebungsvertrag
geregelten Zahlungsansprüche.   

(2)

  

The parties agree that Mr. Buss is not entitled to any further
remuneration claims against the Company which exceed the
remuneration claims regulated in this agreement, in particular he
is not entitled a pro rata profit-related bonus for 2012. This shall
not affect payment claims regulated in this termination
agreement.

§ 4
Abfindung   

§ 4
Severance payment

(1)

  

Die Gesellschaft zahlt Herrn Buss aus Anlass der Beendigung des
Arbeitsverhältnisses und zum Ausgleich eventuell hieraus
resultierender wirtschaftlicher Nachteile eine Abfindung in
Höhe von elf Monatslöhnen, insgesamt CHF 172.622,18 brutto (in
Worten: einhundertzweiundsiebzigtau-
sendsechshundertzweiundzwanzig Franken und achtzehn Rappen
brutto).   

(1)

  

Owing to the end of the employment relationship and in order to
compensate for any economic disadvantages which may arise as a
result the Company shall pay Mr. Buss a severance payment in
the amount of eleven fixed monthly salaries, in total CHF
172.622,18 gross (in words: one hundred seventy two thousand
six hundred twenty two and 18/100 Swiss francs gross).

(2)

  

Der Anspruch auf Abfindung entsteht mit Beendigung des
Arbeitsverhältnisses. Die Zahlung der vorerwähnten ganzen
Abfindung in Höhe von CHF 172.622,18 wird am 1. August 2012
zur Zahlung fällig. Die Auszahlung erfolgt nach Massgabe der im
Auszahlungszeitpunkt gültigen steuerlichen und
sozialversicherungsrechtlichen Vorgaben.   

(2)

  

The entitlement to a severance payment shall arise at the end of
the employment relationship. The payment of the total
abovementioned severance payment of CHF 172.622,18 shall be
due on 1 August 2012. Payment shall be made in accordance with
the tax and social insurance law requirements which apply at the
time of payment.

(3)

  

Eine Verrechnung gegen den Abfindungsanspruch ist lediglich mit
unbestrittenen oder rechtskräftig festgestellten Forderungen
zulässig.   

(3)

  

Claims may only be set off against the severance entitlement with
undisputed claims or which have been declared final and absolute
by a court.



§ 5
Entlastung   

§ 5
Discharge from liability

Die Gesellschaft wirkt darauf hin, dass Herrn Buss für seine Tätigkeit als
Geschäftsführer der Gesellschaft für das Geschäftsjahr 2011 Entlastung
erteilt wird, sobald die revidierten Jahresabschlüsse vorliegen und sofern
nach den gesetzlichen Bestimmungen beziehungsweise der Statuten eine
Entlastung möglich ist.   

The Company shall aim to grant Mr. Buss discharge for his activity as
managing director of the Company for the business year 2011 as soon as
the audited financial statements are available and to the extent that such
discharge is possible pursuant to statutory provisions and the articles of
incorporation.

§ 6
Herausgabe von Unterlagen   

§ 6
Surrender of documents

(1)

  

Herr Buss wird der Gesellschaft alle ihm von der Gesellschaft
oder von mit der Gesellschaft verbundenen Unternehmen
überlassenen, nicht bestimmungsgemäss an Dritte
weitergegebenen/vernichteten Gegenstände und Unterlagen,
insbesondere sämtliche Geschäftsunterlagen, einschliesslich
Datenträger, private dienstliche Aufzeichnungen (auch Kopien
davon) sowie das ihm überlassene Zubehör (insbesondere alle zur
Verfügung gestellten Computer und/oder Mobiltelefone)
unaufgefordert spätestens am letzten Tag des Bestehens des
Arbeitsverhältnisses, auf Verlangen auch bereits zuvor, in
ordnungsgemässem Zustand am Sitz der Gesellschaft
zurückgeben. Schriftstücke/Unterlagen, die sein persönliches
Vertragsverhältnis betreffen, dürfen von Herrn Buss einmal
kopiert und als Kopie zur Wahrnehmung seiner persönlichen
Interessen behalten werden. Herr Buss wird der Gesellschaft die
von ihm kopierten Dokumente schriftlich auflisten und diese
Dokumente gesondert von den übrigen Gegenständen
herausgeben.   

(1)

  

Mr. Buss shall return to the Company any items provided to him
by the Company or companies affiliated with the Company which
have not been duly passed on to third parties or destroyed, in
particular all business documents, including data carriers, private
business records (including copies thereof) and equipment
provided to his (in particular any computer and/or cell provided)
without special request no later than the last day of the
employment relationship, or if so requested earlier, in due and
proper condition at the registered office of the Company. Mr.
Buss may make one copy of letters/documents concerning his
personal contractual relationship and retain a copy thereof for the
purpose of safeguarding his personal interests. Mr. Buss shall
provide the Company with a written list of the documents which
he has copied and return these separately from the other items.



(2)

  

Soweit sich Unterlagen/Kopien auf privat gehörenden EDV-
Geräten/Datenträgern von Herrn Buss befinden sind die Dateien
auf Datenträger zu überspielen, die Datenträger wie die anderen
Gegenstände an die Gesellschaft herauszugeben und die Daten auf
der privaten EDV unverzüglich zu löschen. Herr Buss verpflichtet
sich, etwaige auf einem in seinem Besitz oder Eigentum
befindlichen Computer aufgespielten Programme, für welche die
Gesellschaft oder ein verbundenes Unternehmen die Lizenz
erworben hat, spätestens zum rechtlichen Beendigungszeitpunkt
des Arbeitsverhältnisses zu löschen.   

(2)

  

Should there be any documents/copies on privately owned IT
equipment/data carriers of Mr. Buss the files shall be copied onto
data carriers, the data carriers shall be returned to the Company in
the same way as the other items and the files on private IT
equipment shall be deleted without undue delay. Mr. Buss
undertakes to delete any programmes on computers in his
possession or ownership for which the Company or an affiliated
company has acquired the licence at the latest by the time when
the employment relationship legally ends.

§ 7
Reisekosten   

§ 7
Travel expenses

(1)
  

Herr Buss reicht alle offenen Reisekosten, die bis einschliesslich
31. Juli 2012 angefallen sind, bis spätestens 31. Juli 2012 ein.   

(1)
  

Mr. Buss shall submit all outstanding travel expenses incurred up
to and including 31 July 2012 on or before 31 July 2012.

(2)   Weitere Reisekosten werden nicht erstattet.   (2)   No further travel expenses shall be reimbursed.

§ 8
Dienstwagen   

§ 8
Company car

(1)

  

Herr Buss kann den ihm übelassenen Dienstwagen auch für den
Fall einer Freistellung bis zur Beendigung des Dienstverhältnisses
nach Massgabe der geltenden Nutzungsbestimmungen weiterhin
im bisherigen Umfang privat nutzen. Die für den geldwerten
Vorteil des Sachbezugs anfallenden Steuern trägt Herr Buss.

  

(1)

  

If he is released from his duty to work, Mr. Buss may continue to
use the company car with which he has been provided for private
purposes in the same scope as before until the end of the
employment relationship subject to the applicable guidelines for
use. Mr. Buss shall pay the taxes incurred on the non-cash benefit
of the renumeration in kind.



(2)

  

Die Parteien haben sich geeinigt, dass Herr Buss den Dienstwagen
nach der Beendigung des Arbeitsverhältnisses per 1. August 2012
gegen die Bezahlung von CHF 1 übertragen erhält. Die
Gesellschaft hat die dafür erforderlichen Zustimmungen zu
erteilen und alle notwendigen Vorkehrungen zu treffen. Alle in
diesem Zusammenhang anfallenden Kosten und etwaige Steuern
trägt Herr Buss.   

(2)

  

The Parties have agreed that the company car will be transferred
to Mr. Buss after the termination of the employment relationship
on 1 August 2012 against the payment of CHF 1. The Company
shall give the consents and make all arrangements which are
required for the transfer of the company car to Mr. Buss. All costs
and taxes, if any, are borne by Mr. Buss

§ 9
Geheimhaltung   

§ 9
Confidentiality

(1)

  

Die Parteien verpflichten sich, über diesen Vertrag und seinen
Inhalt strengstes Stillschweigen zu bewahren. Herr Buss ist
berechtigt, diese Vereinbarung gegenüber amtlichen Stellen
vorzulegen, soweit er hierzu aus rechtlichen Gründen verpflichtet
ist oder die Vorlage zur Wahrnehmung eigener berechtigter
Interessen erforderlich ist.   

(1)

  

The parties undertake to observe confidentiality with respect to
this agreement and its content. Mr. Buss is entitled to disclose this
agreement to official authorities if he is obliged to do so under
statute or if so required in observing his own justified interests.

(2)

  

Herr Buss wird über alle ihm anlässlich seiner Tätigkeit für die
Gesellschaft zur Kenntnis gelangten, nicht allgemein bekannten
geschäftlichen und persönlichen Angelegenheiten der
Gesellschaft, der mit ihr verbundenen Unternehmen und/oder
Mitarbeitern, Kunden und sonstigen Geschäftspartnem aller
vorgenannten Gesellschaften, auch soweit eine Angelegenheit ihm
gegenüber nicht ausdrücklich als vertraulich bezeichnet wurden,
Dritten gegenüber strengstes Stillschweigen bewahren. Diese
Verschwiegenheitspflicht ist zeitlich unbegrenzt.   

(2)

  

Mr. Buss shall observe strictest secrecy vis-à-vis third parties with
regard to all business and personal matters of the Company, all
affiliated companies and/or employees, customers and other
business partners of all the above-mentioned companies which
have become known to him in the course of his work for the
Company and which are not generally known, even if he has not
been expressly told that such matters are confidential. This
obligation of confidentiality shall be for an indefinite term.



§ 10
Zeugnis   

§ 10
Letter of recommendation

Herr Buss erhält von der Gesellschaft auf Anforderung ein wohlwollendes
qualifiziertes Schlusszeugnis mit der Note “zur vollsten Zufriedenheit”.

  

Mr. Buss shall receive a favorable qualified final reference from the
Company on request. This reference shall include the statement that his
work was “to our utmost satisfaction”.

§ 11
Saldoklausel   

§ 11
Settlement clause

(1)

  

Die Parteien sind sich daruber einig, dass mit Erfüllung der
vorstehenden § 1-§ 10 sämtliche gegenseitigen Ansprüche der
Parteien aus oder im Zusammenhang mit dem Arbeitsverhältnis
und aus Anlass oder im Zusammenhang mit seiner Beendigung,
gleich aus welchem Rechtsgrund sie bestehen und gleich ob
bekannt oder unbekannt, erledigt sind.   

(1)

  

The parties agree that with fulfillment of § 1-§ 10 above all
mutual claims of the parties from or in connection with the
employment relationship and on the occasion of or in connection
with its termination irrespective of legal grounds and irrespective
of whether known or unknown are settled.

(2)

  

Herr Buss verzichtet darüber hinaus im Wege eines echten
Vertrages zugunsten Dritter auf alle Ansprüche aus oder im
Zusammenhang mit dem Arbeitsverhältnis und aus Anlass oder im
Zusammenhang mit seiner Beendigung, gleich aus welchem
Rechtsgrund sie bestehen und gleich ob bekannt oder unbekannt,
welche ihm gegen Unternehmen, die mit der Gesellschaft
verbunden sind, zustehen. Die Gesellschaft nimmt diesen Verzicht
an.   

(2)

  

Mr. Buss also waives within the meaning of a genuine agreement
in favor of third parties all claims to which he is entitled against
the companies affiliated with the Company from or in connection
with the employment relationship and on the occasion of or in
connection with the termination thereof, irrespective of the legal
grounds for their existence and irrespective of whether known or
unknown. The Company hereby accepts this waiver.

(3)

  

Rechte im Zusammenhang mit der Ausübung oder Abrechnung
von Anteilsoptionen (equity awards), welche Herrn Buss auf
Grundlage eines vorher aufgestellten anteilsbezogenen
Mitarbeiterbeteiligungsplans
(equity incentive plans) der Gesellschaft oder einem mit der
Gesellschaft verbundenen   

(3)

  

Nothing in this clause shall adversely affect any rights Mr. Buss
may have with respect to the exercise or settlement of equity
awards previously issued under the Company’s or under any
affiliated company’s equity incentive plans.



  

Unternehmen möglicherweise zustehen, bleiben von dieser
Regelung unberührt.      

(4)

  

Herr Buss anerkennt ausdrücklich, dass der vorliegende
Aufhebungsvertrag auch in seinem Interesse abgeschlossen wird
und einen echten Vergleich zwischen den Interessen der Parteien
darstellt.   

(4)

  

Mr. Buss acknowledges explicitly that the conclusion of this
termination agreement is also in his interest and constitutes a real
compromise of both parties’ interests.

§ 12
Sonstige Bestimmungen   

§ 12
Miscellaneous

(1)

  

Änderungen und Ergänzungen dieses Vertrages bedürfen zu ihrer
Wirksamkeit der Schriftform. Dies gilt auch für eine Änderung
dieser Schriftformklausel. Mündliche oder schriftliche
Nebenabreden wurden nicht getroffen.   

(1)

  

Amendments and additions to this agreement shall be valid only
if made in writing. This also applies to any amendment to this
written form clause. There are no verbal or written side
agreements.

(2)

  

Dieser Vertrag enthält eine deutsche und eine englische Fassung.
Die englische Fassung ist lediglich eine unverbindliche
Übersetzung; im Zweifelsfall ist allein die deutsche Fassung
massgeblich.   

(2)

  

This agreement contains a German and an English version. The
English version merely constitutes a convenience translation; in
the event of doubt only the German version shall be authoritative.

(3)

  

Von diesem Aufhebungsvertrag sind zwei Originale gefertigt
worden. Beide Parteien bestätigen mit ihrer Unterschrift, jeweils
ein Original dieses Aufhebungsvertrages erhalten zu haben.   

(3)

  

There are two originals of this termination agreement. With their
signatures both parties confirm that they have received an original
of this termination agreement.

§ 13
Rechtswahl und Gerichtsstand   

§ 13
Choice of law and jurisdiction

Dieser Vertrag und seine Auslegung unterliegen Schweizer Recht.
Gerichtsstand für alle Streitigkeiten über Rechte und Pflichten aus diesem
Vertrag einschliesslich seiner Wirksamkeit ist der Sitz der Gesellschaft.

  

This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of Switzerland. Place of jurisdiction for all disputes regarding rights
and duties under this agreement, including its validity shall be the
registered office of the Company.



§ 14
Salvatorische Klausel   

§ 14
Severability

Die Unwirksainkeit oder Undurchführbarkeit einer oder mehrerer Regelungen
dieses Vertrages lässt die Wirksamkeit der übrigen Regelungen dieses
Vertrages unberührt. Dasselbe gill für den Fall, dass der Vertrag eine an sich
notwendige Regelung nicht enthält. An die Stelle der unwirksamen oder
undurchführbaren Regelung oder zur Ausfüllung der Regelungslücke tritt die
gesetzlich zulässige und durchführbare Regelung, die dem Sinn und Zweck
der unwirksamen, undurchführbaren oder fehlenden Regelung nach der
Vorstellung der Parteien wirtschaftlich am nächsten kommt.   

Should one or more provisions of this agreement be or become invalid or
unenforceable, this shall not affect the validity and enforceability of the
remaining provisions of this agreement. The same shall apply if the
agreement does not contain an essential provision. In place of the invalid
or unenforceable provision, or to fill a contractual lacuna, such valid and
enforceable provision shall apply which reflects as closely as possible the
commercial intention of the parties as regards the invalid, unenforceable or
missing provision.



UNTERSCHRIFTEN   SIGNATURES

Beringen, den 18.06.2012   Beringen, June 18th 2012

  

 

  

(FARO-Swiss Holding GmbH)   (Siegfried Buss)

  
 

(Jay Freeland FARO Technologies, Inc.)   



Exhibit 31-A

FARO Technologies, Inc.
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Jay W. Freeland, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of FARO Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.
 
Date: July 31, 2012

/s/ Jay W. Freeland
Name: Jay W. Freeland
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31-B

FARO Technologies, Inc.
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Keith S. Bair, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of FARO Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.
 
Date: July 31, 2012

/s/ Keith S. Bair
Name: Keith S. Bair
Title: Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 32-A

FARO Technologies, Inc.
Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Solely for the purposes of complying with 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, I, the undersigned
President and Chief Executive Officer and Director of FARO Technologies, Inc. (the Company), hereby certify that the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, for the
quarter ended June 30, 2012 (the Report) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that
information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
/s/ Jay W. Freeland
Jay W. Freeland
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
July 31, 2012



Exhibit 32-B

FARO Technologies, Inc.
Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Solely for the purposes of complying with 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, I, the undersigned
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of FARO Technologies, Inc. (the Company), hereby certify that the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, for the
quarter ended June 30, 2012 (the Report) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that
information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
/s/ Keith S. Bair
Keith S. Bair
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
July 31, 2012


